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LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA)} LIMITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2019

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated annual financial statements and annual financial
statemeiits of Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited, comprising the statements of financial position at 31 December 2019, and the statements
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements which include a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, and the directors’ report, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Namibian Companies Act.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an

effective system of risk management,

The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the company and the group to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe
that the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the consolidated and separate annual financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Namibian Companies Act.

Approval of the annual financial statements

The annual financial statements of Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited, as identified in the first paragraph, set out on pages 9 to 57, were
approved by the directors on 26 May 2020 and signed on their behall by:

ety

Maryvonne Palanduz v Ester Kali
Chairperson Chief Executive Officer
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated and separate financial position of Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (together the Group) as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated and separate financial performance
and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.

What we have audited

Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited’s consolidated and separate financial statements set out on pages 9 to 57
comprise:

e the directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2019;

e the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

e the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
Jfinancial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with sections 29o and 291 of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Revised July 2016), parts 1 and 3 of the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (Revised July 2018) (Code of Conduct) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Namibia. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Conduct and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable
to performing audits in Namibia.

PricewaterhouseCoopers , Registered Auditors, 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, P O Box 1571, Windhoek,
Namibia Practice Number 9406, T:+ 264 (61) 284 1000, F: +264 (61) 284 1001, www.pwec.com/na

Country Senior Partner: R Nangula Uaandja
Partners: Louis van der Riet, Anna EJ Rossouw, Chantell N Husselmann, Gerrit Esterhuyse, Samuel N Ndahangwapo, Hans F Hashagen, Johannes P Nel,
Trofimus Shapange, Hannes van den Berg
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Our audit approach
Overview
Overall group materiality

e  Querall group materiality: N$29,880,000, which represents 5% of
consolidated operating profit before taxation,

Materiality

Overall audit scope
e The group audit scope included the audit of Letshego Holdings (Namibia)

B A Limited and both of its subsidiaries, being Letshego Bank (Namibia)
Limited and Letshego Micro Financial Services (Namibia) (Proprietary)
Limited.

Key audit

matters Key audit matter

o Expected credit losses on advances to customers.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
consolidated and separate financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to frand.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to
fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including the
group overall materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the
financial statements as a whole.

QOverall group Ng§29,880,000.

materiality

How we determined it 5% of consolidated operating profit before taxation.

Rationale for the We chose consolidated operating profit before taxation as the benchmark
materiality benchmark because, in our view, it is the benchmark against which the performance of the
applied Group is most commonly measured by users, and is a generally accepted

benchmark. We chose 5% which is consistent with quantitative materiality
thresholds used for profit-oriented companies in this sector.




™

pwc

How we tailored our group audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

The consolidated financial statements are a consolidation of the Company and its two subsidiaries (each a
“component”) for purposes of our group audit scope. A full scope-audit was performed on the two subsidiaries,
Letshego Bank (Namibia) Limited and Letshego Micro Financial Services (Namibia) (Proprietary) Limited.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Consolidated financial statements

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our audit procedures addressed the key areas of
significant judgement and estimation in
determining the ECL on advances as follows.

Key audit matter

Expected credit losses on advances to customers

Using our valuations expertise:

IFRS 9- Financial Instruments requires the recognition of
expected credit losses (ECLs) on all financial assets within
the scope of its impairment model.

The Group’s advances to customers typically comprise of
high volume and lower values, therefore a significant
portion of the impairment is calculated on a portfolio basis.
Management considered the segmentation of the loan book
and determined that the loan consists of only one segment,
namely Government employees. The non-government
segment (which is expected to have a different risk profile),
is less than 2% of the total portfolio (which is the threshold
used in the model), thus management has not identified
that segment as a separate segment for the purpose of the
impairment assessment.

Management measures the ECLs using a ‘three-stage’
model for impairment based on changes in credit quality
since initial recognition.

Stage 1 is not credit-impaired on initial recognition but is
monitored by the group. If there is an increase in credit
risk, financial assets move to Stage 2 and a lifetime credit
risk model is applied. Advances in Stage 3 are credit
impaired if it meets one or more of certain quantitative and
qualitative criteria as disclosed in the financial statements.

The inputs into the model process requiring significant
management estimation and judgement include:

e  The probability of default (PD) , which is developed by
using data and assumptions from historical default
experience and incorporating forward looking
information.

We assessed the accounting policies and
impairment methodologies applied by
management, and found the methodologies to
be consistent with the requirement of IFRS g.

We tested the accuracy of the impairment
models by building our own independent
models and comparing our results to those of
management. We found management’s
estimate of the ECL allowance on advances to
customers to be within an acceptable range of
our independently calculated estimate in the
context of an expected credit loss model.

We assessed the reasonability of the transfers
between stages by calculating a 12-month
transfer ratio which represents the volume of
accounts that are expected to move from
performing to 30 days past due or worse over
the next 12 months for at least 2 consecutive
months. This was compared to the transferred
performing Stage 2 accounts as a proportion of
all performing accounts. We evaluated
management’s processes for identifying stage 3
exposures by selecting a sample of exposures
not classified at stage 3 to assess whether the
loans older than 9o days were classified as stage
3. Our results did not identify material
deviations.

We evaluated the proposed PD by
independently calculating a PD term structure
to capture the PD over the entire life of the
accounts on a collective basis. The PD term
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e  The loss given default (LGD) which is determined
using judgement around estimation of timing and
amount of forecasted cash flows.

e  Exposure at default (EAD), based on expected
payment profile, considering contractual repayment
terms and expected drawdowns with a credit
conversion factor.

e  TForward looking information incorporated into the
ECL model includes the Consumer Price Index (CPI),
which management considers to be the most
significant economic variable. This includes
forecasting the economic variables and estimating the
scenario weightings.

To mitigate credit risk, loans are covered under a cell
captive insurance arrangement between Letshego Holdings
(Namibia) Litd and the cell insurer, and between Letshego
Micro Financial Services (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd and the cell
insurer. This arrangement was changed in October 2019,
after which new loans were not covered by insurance.

We considered this area to be a matter of most significance
in our audit of the current year due to the magnitude of the
advances to customers account balance, and the degree of
judgement applied by management in determining the
ECL.

The disclosures associated with expected credit losses on
advances to customers are set out in the consolidated
financial statements in the following notes:

« Note 6.1.1 — Financial Risk Factors, Credit Risk (page 27);
and

« Note 10 — Advances to Customers (page 43).

structure captures the default risk for the first
12 months, i.e. the 12 month PD, as well as the
default risk for year 2, 3, etc., i.e. the lifetime
PD. Our results did not identify material
deviations.

We tested the process and timing of recoveries
and developed an independent range of
recoveries based on historical data. We found
management’s recoveries to be within our
reasonable range. For insured advances, we
assessed the inclusion of insurance recoveries
in the LGD assessment.

We assessed the EAD by independently
estimating an amortisation schedule to
outstanding balances for the full behavioural
lifetime, and comparing this to management’s
assessment. We found management’s EAD to
be in an acceptable range of our estimate.

‘We compared management’s CPI assumptions
to the forecasted CPI per the Bank of Namibia,
and found them to be comparable.

In addition to management’s macroeconomic
assumptions around CPI, we have
independently assessed a second
macroeconomic impact based on the Namibian
government credit rating and found that it did
not materially change the assessment.

We assessed the appropriateness of the loan
segmentation and the need for including any
additional segments. Through inspection of
loan agreements, we noted that the
Government is listed as the employer in more
than 98% of loans granted, and that inclusion of
another segment would not materially change
the ECL.

For a sample of advances, we tested the
accuracy of their aging by agreeing the
underlying data to loan contracts and
recalculating the aging, and found no
exceptions;

We tested whether Letshego Bank (Namibia)
Ltd loans are covered under cell captive
insurance arrangement between Letshego
Holdings (Namibia) Ltd and the cell insurer,
and between Letshego Micro Financial Services
(Namibia) (Pty) Ltd, by agreeing loan
agreements to insurance cover, on a sample
basis, and found that loans were covered by
insurance, where stated.
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Separate financial statements

‘We have determined that there are no key audit matters in respect of the separate financial statements to
communicate in our report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the document titled “Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2019”. The other information does not include the consolidated or the separate financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of Namibia, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and/or the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gnarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and / or Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
hear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Per: Louis van der Riet

Partner

Windhoek

Date: 26 May 2020



LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIRECTORS' REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2019

The directors present their report fo the members, together with the audited annual financial statements of Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited (“the company”) and the
audited consolidated annual financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries {“the group™) for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

16.

Reporting entity
Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited {'LHN') was incorporated in ile Republic of Namibia on 24 February 2016,

Nature of business

Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited is a listed public company, which operates within the Republic of Namibia. Its main business is hoiding its investment
subsidiaries, namely Letshego Bank Namibia Limited ('LBN'") and Letshego Micro Financial Services Namibia (Pty) Ltd (LMFSN'). LHN holds 99.99% of the
issued share capital in LBN and 100% of the issued share capital in LMFSN. The Group provides banking and other financial services to Namibian residents.

Share capital
There was no change in the authorised and issued share capital of the company during the year under review.

Dividends
A dividend of 23.5 cents per ordinary share was declared and paid during the year under review (2018: 19.2 cents).

T¥recetors and secretary
The following persons were directors during the period under review:

Maryvonne Palanduz** Independent Non-executive; Chairperson

Ester Kali** Executive

Rairirira Mbakutua Mbetjtha** Non-executive

John Eugene Shepherd** Independent Non-executive (resigned 30 April 2019)
Sven von Blottnitz"* Independent Non-executive

Rosatia Martins-Hausiku*¥* Independent Non-Executive

Mythri Sambasivan-George™* Non-executive

** Namibian ~indian ¥ German

The secretary of the company is Bonsai Secretarial Compliance Services.

Business address: Postal address:
18 Schwerinsburg Street P O Box 11600
Windhoek Windhoek
Namibia Namibia

Holding company

As at year-end, Leishego Holdings Limited {incorporated in the Republic of Botswana) holds 78.46% of the issued share capital, while Kumwe Investment
Holdings Limited holds 12% of the issued share capital. The rest of the issued share capital is held by members of the public (retail investors) as well as
corporate entitses.

Financial results
The financial results of the Company and the Group are sef out in these financial statements.

Borrowing powers

In terms of the Memorandum and Articles of Incorporation, the company has limited borrewing powers.

The total borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2019 are N$432 million (2018 N$464 million). Full details of the borrowings are shown in notes 15 and 16
to the consolidated annual financial statements.

Major capital expenditurcs
The Group made additions to its capital assets of N$17.1 million during the financial year.

Going concern

The directors have satisfied themselves that the Group and the separate company is in a sound financial position and that sufficient borrowing facilities are
accessible in order to enable the company to meet its foresecable cash requirements. In addition, there has been no material change in the markets in which the
Group and the separate company operates and it has the necessary skills to continue operations. On this basis the directors consider that the Group and the
separate company has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future and therefore deem it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the company’s financial staternents for this reporting period.




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (confinued)

for the year ended 31 December 2019

11.

12

13.

14.

Investment in subsidiaries
Effective holding

issued ordinary
share capital and

Number of shares prenium 2019 2018
Subsidiaries of Letshego Holdings (Namibia) Limited held N§'000 Yo Yo
Letshego Bank {(Namtbia) Limited 959,994 100 99.9 929
Letshego Micro Financial Services (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd 1,000,060 140,100 100 100

2019 2018 2019 2018
N$'006 N3$'000 N$'060 N3'000

Aggregate income of subsidiaries before tax
Financial details of subsidiaries Total investment
Letshege Bank (Namibia) Limited 84,344 42,682 100 160
Letshego Micro Financial Services (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd 441,490 549,602 570,100 570,100

Compliance with BID-2
The Group’s annuat financial statements comply with the Bank of Namibia’s Determination On Asset Classification, Suspension of Interest and Provisioning

(BID-2).

Material post reporting date events
A dividend 0f 22.5 cents per ordinary share has been declared since the end of the reporting period.

Since the reporting date, there has been globa! outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19). The directors have evaluated the financial impact of COVID-19 on the
Group and canmot identify a going concern risk within the medium term. The Group has identified the health of its employees as the most critical risk factor
during the pandemic and has implemented sufficient measures to mitigate these risks. An estimate of the financial impact of COVID-19 on the Group cannof be
made due to uncertainties regarding how long the pandemic will last and its overall effecis on the jocal economy, Notwithstanding, the Group does not expect
any major adverse effects on its advances portfolio directly resulting from COVID-19 as the majority of its customers are employed by the Government and are
not expected to lose their empioyment in the foreseeable future. Apart from this, the directors are not aware of any matters or circumstances arising since the end
of the financial period and up to the date of this report, that would require adjustment of, or disclosure in these annual financial statements.

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor in 2020 for purposes of the 2019 financial year audit, subsequent to the resignation of Emst & Young who
had been appointed in 2019 with the approval of the shareholders in accordance with the Namibian Companies Act,

10




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA)} LIMITED

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis

Financial assets at amortised cost

Other receivables

Intercompany receivabie

Advances to customers

Current taxation

Investment in subsidiaries

Property, equipment and right-of-use assets *

Deferred tax assets *

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liahilities

Deposits due 1o customers
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Bomrowings

Amounts due to parent company
Deferred tax Habilities 2

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

Retained earnings

Capital reorganisation reserve

Equity settled share based payment reserve

Non-conirolling interest
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Notes

9.1
92
10
14.4
30
1
143

17
12
13
15
HE

14.3

29
134

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N$ N$ N$ N$
147,586,155 750,860,322 179,513 1,119,927
13,978,808 - - R
202,409,064 131,287,964 50,211,880 18,203,676
- - 15,315,541 1,355,073
2,935,341,149 2,555,621,590 - -
23,825,717 22,347,358 7,204,141 71,233,463
- - 1,914,353,808 1,914,353,808
31,671,627 9,643,952 - -
17,825,861 9,713,498 - -
3,372,638,381 3,479,474,684 1,987,264,883 1,942,265,947
43,360,856 74,748,898 - -
50,288,075 50,906,611 294,978 258,868
14,207,102 - - -
290,771,872 341,050,891 - -
140,951,508 123,398,691 - 17,831,009
18,959,024 14,015,331 - -
558,338,437 604,120,422 294,978 18,089,877
106,000 100,600 100,000 100,000
1,430,488,761 £,162,814,840 642,716,097 579,922,262
701,024,198 701,024,198 1,344,153,808 1,344,153,808
2,143,979 1,072,218 - -
2,133,756,938 £,865,011,256 1,986,969,905 1,924,176,670
680,343,006 £,010,343,006 - -
2,814,099,944 2,875,354,262 1,986,969,985 1,924,176,070
3,372,638,381 3,479,474 684 1,987,264,883 1,942,265,947

1 The Group has, as penmitied by TFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), elected not to restate its comparative anauat financial statements. Comparability will therefore not be achieved as the
comparative anrual financial information has been prepared on an 1AS 17 Leases (IAS 17) basis. Refer to note 3 for more detail on the adoption of [FRS 16,

2 The net of the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities was previousiy presented under a single line item, During the year, the Group has disciosed the deferred tax assets and the

deferred tax liabilities separately.




LETSHEGO MOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Interest income cajculated using the effective interest income method *
Tnterest expense *

Net interest income
Credit impairment (charge) / release

Net interest income after impairment
Dividend income

Fee income

Other operaling income

Einployee benefits
Other operating expenses *

Operating profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other cemprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Basic earnings per share (cents)
Fuily dilited earnings per share {cents)

Notes

23
23

23
10

24
25
21
22

20

34
34

Group

Company

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
NS N§ NS N$
625,198,158 618,157,907 85,572 24,149
(36,617,530 (32,866,178) - -
588,580,628 585,201,729 85,572 24,149
(9,235,614) (18,225,673) - -
579,345,014 567,066,056 85,572 24,149
- - 120,882,783 -
2,102,415 1,175,997 - -
229,998,977 255,340,167 73,694,645 37,803,295
(63,889,116) (49,263,424) {40,324} (60,739)
(149,954,055)  (145,936,115) {1,970,766) {1,667,994)
597,603,235 628,382 681 192,651,910 36,008,711
(146,497,396)  (159,510.070) (12,358,075) (4,465,952)
451,105,839 168,872,611 180,293,835 31,632,759
451,105,839 468,872,611 180,293,835 11,632,759
90 94 36 6
90 94 36 6

' The Group's other interest income was previously presented separately in the staterent of comprelhensive income. However, management considers it to be more relevant if all interest income is
presented in one line itete i the statement of comprehensive income. Prior year comparatives as at 31 December 2018 have been restated by reclassifying NAD21,464,747 from other interest
income to Inderest income caiculated using the effective interest income method.

2 As aresult of the implementation of [FRS 16, the interest expense amount includes interest on the lease liabilities of N$1,6m and the other operating expenses include depreciation on right-of-use

assels of N§4 .6




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2019

GROUP

As at 1st January 2019

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit and total compreheasive income for the
year

Transactions with equity holders, recorded
dirvectly i equity

Ordinary share dividend paid

Preference share dividend paid

Preference shares redeemed

Share based payment transactions

Ag at 31 December 2019

As at Ist January 2018

Total comprehensive income for the perfod
Profit and totai comprehensive income for the
yaar

Fransactions with equity helders, recorded
directly in equity

QOrdinary share dividend paid

Preference share dividend paid

Preference shares issued

Prefeience shares redeemed

Share based payment transactions

As at 31 December 2018

Equity settted share Capital Ordinary
based payment reorganisation sharchelders”  Non-controlling

Share capital reserve Retnined earniungs reserve reserve interest * Totak equity
N3 N$ N$ NS iN§ N§
100,000 1,072,218 1,162,814,840 701,024,198 1,865,011,256 1,610,343,006 2,875,354,262
- - 451,105,839 - 451,105,839 - 451,105,839

- - {117,500,000) - (£17,500,000) - (117,560,000)

- - (65,931,918) - {65,931,918) - (65,931,918)

- - - - - (330,600,000) (330,000,000)
- 1,071,761 - - 1,071,764 - 1,071,761
160,000 2,143,979 1,430,488,761 701,024,198 2,133,756,938 680,343,006 2,814,099,944
160,000 1,970,626 871,938,595 701,024,198 1,581,033,81% 215,084,843 1,796,118,662
- B 468,872,611 - 468,872,611 - 468,872,611

- - (96,000,003) - (96,000,003) - {56,000,003)

- . (87,996,763) - (87,996,763) - {87.996,763})
- - - - - 397,053,038 897,053,038

- - - - - (101,794,875) (101,794,875)

- (898,408) - - {398,408) - {898,408)
100,000 1,072,218 1,£62,814,840 701,024,198 1,865,011,256 1,0£6,343,006 2,875,354,262

* The Noti-controlling interest relates to the preference share holders who o not share in the profit, As at 31 December 2019, the balance is made up of N$§215,084,843 irredeemable, non
curnlative preference shares {2018: N$215,084,843) and N$445,238,163 redeemable non-cumidative preference shares (2018: N§793,258,163). The non-camulative preference shares were
onginally created by converting a loan from Letshego Holdings Limited into non-curlative preference shares. This transaction was ratified by the minority shareholders of LHN and is pending

approval by the High Court.

COMPANY
As at I1st January 2059

Total comprehensive income for fhe year
Profit and total comprehensive income for
the period

Transactions with equity holders,
recorded directly in equity

Ordinary share dividend paid

As at 31 December 2019

As at 1st Jannary 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit and tatal comprehensive income for
the periad

Transactions with equity holders,
recorded divectly in equity

Ordinary share dividend paid

As at 3] December 2018

100,000 - 579,922,262 1,344,153,808 1,924,176,070 - 1,924,176,070
- - 180,293,835 - 180,293,835 - 180,293,835
- - (117,500,000} - (117,500,000) - (117,500,009)
100,000 - 642,716,097 1,344,153,808 1,986,969,905 - 1,986,969,905
100,000 - 544,289,506 1.344,153,808 1,988,543,314 - 1,988,543,314
- - 31,632,759 - 31,632,759 - 31,632,759
. - {96,000,003) - (96,000,003 - (96,000,003}
100,000 - 579,922,262 1,344,153,808 1,924,176,070 - 1,924,176,070




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2019

CASHTLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating profit before taxation

Adjusted for,

- Net interest income

« Dividends received

- Depreciation !

- Tmpairment allowance on advances

- Equity settled share based payment transactions
- Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Movement in financial assets at amortised cost
Movement in advances te customers
Movement in other receivables

Movement ins trade and other payables
Movement in customer deposits

Ingerest received

Interest paid - customer deposits

Tax paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (excluding to right-of-use assets)

Dividend received

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Preference shares issued during the year
Preference shares redeemed during the year
Ordinary share dividend paid

Preference share dividend paid

Borrowings received

Boarrowings repaid

Interest paid - borrowings and lease liabilities !
Increase in intercompany loans

Repayments of intercompany loans

Principal element of lease payments

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net moventent in cash and cash equivalents

Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At the beginning of the year
Movement during the year

At the end of the period

Notes

23

11
10
19

10
9.1
12
17

23
14.4

Group

Comypany

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
N§ N§ NS N$
597,603,235 628,382,681 192,651,910 36,098,711
(SBE,SH0,628)  (585,291,729) (85,572) (24,349)
- - (126,882,783) -
12,856,171 5,052,299 - -
5,945,126 13,023,260 - .
1,071,761 (898,408) - .
- 639,272 - -
{13,978,808) - - -
(3B5,664,685)  (140468,916) . -
(71,121,100} (5,413,308) (32,008,204) 1,471,092
(618,536 7 460,733 36,110 170,243
(31,386,042) {15,436,161) - -
(@73,875,506) {92,920,277) 39,711,461 37,715,807
625,198,158 618,157,907 85,572 24,149
(5,794,464) (3,205,081) - -
(151,144,425)  (165.921,582) (12,328,753) (4465 .952)
(5,616,237 356,110,967 27,468,280 33.274,094
(17,116,020) (4,281,737) - -
- . 120,382,783 -
{17,116,020) (4,281,737) 120,882,783 -

. 897,053,038 - .
(330,000,000)  (101,794,875) - .
{117,506,000) (96,000,003) (117,500,000) (96,000,003)

(65,931,918) (87,996,763) - .
100,600,000 325,000,000 - .
(150,279,019) (47,504,845) - .
(30,823,066) (29,662,097) - -
99,552,817  {658,740,663) (31,791,477) 39,307,308
(82,000,000)  {125,000,000} - -
(3,560,724) - - -
(580,541,910) 75,354,792 (149,291,477} (56,692.693)
(603,274,167 437,184,022 (940,414) (23.418.600)
750,866,322 323,676,300 1,119,927 24,538,528
(603,274,167) 427,184,022 (940,414) {23,418,601)
147,586,155 750,860,322 179,513 1,119,927

1 Agaresult of the implementation of IFRS 16 interest paid includes interest on the lease liabilities of N$1.6m and deprectation includes depreciation en right-of-use assets of

N&4.6m1.




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 December 2019

1.
2,
a)
b)
)

Reporting entity

Letshego Hoeldings (Namibia) Limited is a Company domiciled in Namibia. The address of the Company’s registered office is 18 Schwerinsburg Street,
Windhoek, Namibia. The consolidated financial statements of Eetshego Holdings Namibia Limited as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 comprise
the Company and the interest in its two subsidiaries, namely, Letshego Bank (Namibia) Limited and Letshego Micre Financial Services (Namibia) (Pty) 14d.
The Group is primarily engaged in the provision of bunking and other financial services to members of the public.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“JFRS”) under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the initial recognition of financial instruments based on fair value, and by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial instruments categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented except where changes in accounting policies have been
adopted as described in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Namibia Dollar, which is the Group’s functional currency and are rounded to the nearest Namibia Dollar.

Key assumptions and critical judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historicat experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgments about carrying amouats of assets and [tabiiitics that are not apparent from other sources.

Actuat results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and the future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgment in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial stalements are described in Notes 6 and 10.

Going concern
As stated in the directors’ responsibility section, the annual financial statements have been prepared on & going concern basis which contemplates the continuity
of normal business activity and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal cosirse of business.

Impairment of advances to customers

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVQCI is an area that reguires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likefihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation {echniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 6,1.1, which also sets out key sensitivities
of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

+  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

+  Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

+  Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL.; and
+  Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the Group in the above areas is set out in Note 6.1.1.

Current and deferred taxation

Judgement is required in delermining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of fegislation in which the Group operates. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated $ax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is

1




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED})
for the year ended 31 Pecember 2019

o)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Key assumptions and critical judgements (continued}

Provisions and other contingent liabilities
The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it
may be involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings, arising in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

When the Group can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation o a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Group
records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, bul a refiable estimate cannot be made, a
contingent liability is disclosed. However, when the Group is of the opinion that disclosing these estimates on a case-by-case basis would prejudice their
outcome, then the Group does not include detailed, case-specific disclosers in its financial statements.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Group takes into account a number of factors including legal
advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents, Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Effective Interest Rate (TIR) method

The Group’s EIR methodelogy, as explained in Note 4.1), recognises interest income using a rate of retum that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of
return over the expected behavioural life of toans and deposits and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycie. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well expected changes to the base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 as issued by the IASB in January 2016 with a {ransition date of 1 January 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting
policies.

As permitted by the transitiona provisions of IFRS 16, the Group elected to adopt the new rules using the modified retrospective approach and recognised the
cumuiative effect of initially applying the new standard on | January 2019.

Set aut below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group. Further details of the specific IFRS 16 accounting policies applied
in the current period are described in more delail in section 4. below.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease fiabilities in relation fo leases which had previcusly been classified as ‘operating leases’ under the
principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 12%.

The Group had no leases which were previously classified as finance leases.

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the foliowing practical expedients permitted by the standard:

+  applying a single discouni rate to a porifelio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

+  relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an aliernative to performing an impairment review — there were no onerous contracts as
at 1 Janvary 2019,

. accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;

«  excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

+  using hindsight in determining the fease term where the contract contains options 1o extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before

the transition date the Group relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Deternining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

Measurement of lease liabilities

201%
NS

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 17,172,545
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial application 16,279,768
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2018 -
(1.ess): short-term leases not recognised as a liability (2,358,431)
{Less): low-value leases not recognised as a liability -
Add/(less): contracts reassessed as lease conlracts -
Add/(less): adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options : -
Add/(Jess): adjustments relating to changes in the index or rate affecting variable payments -
Lease liability vecognised as at 1 January 2019 13,921,337
Of which are:

Current lease liabilities 3,456,276

Non-current lease liabilities 10,465,061

13,921,337

16




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIEBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Measurement of right-af-use asseis

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured on a modified retrospective basis as if the new rules had always been applied. Other right-
of use assets were measured at the amount equal to the fease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

Adfusiments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019

The change in accounting poticy affected the following items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:
+  right-of-use assets — increase by N$13.9 million

+  lease liahilities — increase by N$13.9 million,

The net impact on retained earnings on 1 January 2019 was nil.

Lessor accounting
The Group did not have assets held as lessor and did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a

result of the adoption of IFRS 16.

Significant accounting policies

Except for the changes explained in Note 3 above, the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financiat statements,

Basis of consolidation

Interest in subsidiaries

‘The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities} controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Conérof is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investec;

+ is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and

+ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns,

‘Fhe Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains controf over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

The acguisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations meeting the definition of a business. A business is defined as an
integrated set of activities and assets that are capable of being conducted and managed for the purpose of providing a return. It is presumed that a business
exists if goodwill is present in the acquired set of assets and activities. Evidence to the contrary would need to overcome this presumption. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition comprises the:

+ fair values of the assets transferred

« liabilities incurred to or assunied from the former owners of the acquired business

« equity interests issued by the group

« fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and

« fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in @ business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their
fair vahses at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any nos-controiling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity, financial asset or a financial liability. Such amounts classified as a financial assets or financial liability
are subseguently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwiil.

If those amounts are less than the fair vatue of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or foss as a
bargain purchase (negative goodwill).

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted {o their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
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CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLECIES {CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2019

4,

a)

b)

o)

Siganificant accounting pelicies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying amount of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is afiributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this resulis in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows selating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full en
consolidation.

Capital re-organisation reserve gecouniing

In a capital rearganisation, the new company’s consolidated financial statements include the existing entity’s fuli results {including comparatives), even though
the reorganisation may have occurred part of the way through the year. This reflects the view that the transaction involves two entities controiled by the same
controlling party — the financial statements reflect the numbers from the perspective of that party and they reflect the period over which that party has had
control.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Namibia Doliar at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are transtated to Namibia Dollar at the foreign exchange rate applicable for seftlement as at
that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on the monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the
period, adiusted for the effective interest and payments during the pericd, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are translated to Namibia Dollar at
the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies that are stated at fair valve are
translated to Namibian Dollas at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair values were determined. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises interest income and non-interest income.

i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Collection fees on loans granted and commission paid fo sales agents

Collection fees on loans granted and commission paid to sales agents are charged upfront and capitalised into the loan. These fees are primarily based on the
cost of granting the foan to the individual. In accordance with IFRS 9, these collection fees on loans granted and comimission paid o sales agents are considered
an integral pari of the loan agreement and are therefore recognised as an integral part of the effective interest rate and are accounted for over the shorter of the
original contractual term and the actual term of the loan using the effective interest rate method,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amaortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense aver the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financiat liahility.

When ealcutating the effective interest rate, the Group and Company estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and administration charges patd or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Once a financial asset or a collection of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment foss, interest income is recognised using the original effective interest rate to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents is earned on the effective interest method at the agreed interest rate with the respective financial institution.




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}
for the year ended 31 December 2019

4. Significant aceounting policies (continued)
¢} Revenue recognition (continued)

ii} Fee income

Fees are measured based on consideration specified in a contract with a customer and exciude amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Fees are recognised
on an accrual basis when the serviee has been rendered / control over a good or service has been transferred to the customer.
The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including

significan{ payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

microlending services |[account management, provision of overdraft facilities and servicing fees.

Where applicable, fees for ongoing account management are charged to the customer’s
account on a monthly basis. The Group sets the rates on an annual basis.

Transaction-based fees for interchange and overdrafis are charged to the customer’s
account when the transaction takes place.

Where applicable, servicing fees are charged on a monthiy basis and are based on fixed
rates reviewed annally by the Group.

There is no financing component.

Type of service Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance ebligations, including significant Revenue recognition under IFRS 15
payment terms
Retail banking and The Group provides banking services to retaél and corporate customers, including Revenue from account service and servicing

fees is recognised over time as {he service is
provided,

Revenue related to transactions is recognised
at the point in time when the transaction takes
place.

Non-refundable up-front fees are recognised
as revenue over the period for which a
customer is expected to continue receiving the
service or utilising the facility,

iii} Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in profit in the period in which they are declared. Any dividends declared after the end of the reporting period and before the

consclidated financial statements are authorised for issue, are disclosed irn the subsequent events note.




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2012

4, Significant accouniing policies (continued)
d) Leases

i} Group and Company acting as a lessee
The Group and Company changed its accounting policy for leases where the Group / Company is the lessee. The new policy is is described beiow, The impact
of the change is disciosed in Noie 3 above.

The Group leases various office buildings. Rental contracts are fypically made for fixed periods of 2 years to 5 years but may have extension oplions as
described below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group and Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee, il has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor, Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as either finance leases or operating leases. Where the group, as lessee, had
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership were classified as finance leases. Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum fease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, were included
in other short-term and long-terin payables, Hach lease payment was allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost was charged to profit or
lass over the lease period so as to prodizce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases was depreciated over the asset’s useful tife, or aver the shorter of the asset’s useful fife and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the group as lessee were classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessar) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liabifity at the date at which the Jeased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a fease are initially measured on a present value basis, Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

+  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

+  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rafe as at the commencement date;

+  amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual vaiue guarantees,

»  the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

+  payments of penaities for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual fessee wouid have Lo pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing received/offered by external third parties as a starting point, adjusted
to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

When adjustments to fease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the Jease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease paymients are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged Lo profit or foss over the lease periad so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

When the Group or lessor terminates or cancels a lease, the right of use asset and lease liability are derecognised. On derecognition of the right of use asset and
lease liability, any difference is recognised as a derecognition gain or foss in profit or loss.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

0 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

«  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and

«  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the tease term on a straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated aver the underlying asset’s useful life. Right-of-use buildings held by the Group are
not subject to revaluation.
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d)

c}

Significant accounting policies (continned)
Leases (continued)
i} Group and Company acting as a lessee (continued)

The Group applies the short-term lease recogaition exemption to its short-term leases of property (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date). Tt also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment, computer equipment and
fumniture that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of fow value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
bhasis over the lease term.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility ir: tenms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations, The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

Taxation
Incame tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current {ax and deferred tax are recognised in ihe profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

i) Current taxation
Current taxaiion is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods. Taxable income is determined by adjusting the profit before taxation for ifems
which are non-taxable or disaliowed in terms of tax legislation.
Current tax is charged or credited lo profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates {o items charged or credited directly to the statement of changes in equity,
in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity.

ii) Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided using the statement of financial position liabiity method for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation on property, equipment and right-of-use assets, allowances provisions for originated loans,
deferred fees on borrowings and provisions for the equity settled share based payments scheme. Deferred ax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits witl be available against which the unused tax losses can be wiilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become prabable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend te settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis and their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously,

Financial assets and labilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cos! and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial
assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment aflowance) or (o the amortised cost of a
financial liability, The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or
received that are integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For purchased or originated credit-impaired (*‘POCT’) financial asseis — assets
that are credit-impaired (see definition on Node 6.1.1) at initial recognition — the Group calcufates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated
based on the amortised cost of the financial assetinstead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in estimated future
cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the
new estimate discounted using the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest inconme

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for;

(@) POCI financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the amortiged cost of the financial asset.

(b) Financial assets that are not “POCI’ but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or *Stage 3°), for which interest revenue is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to their amortised cost (1.e. net of the expected credit loss provision),
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4. Significant accounting pelicies (continued)
B Financial assets and liabilities {continued)
Measurement methods (continued})
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group cominits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value pius or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial
liability not at fair value threugh profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Fransaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair vaiue through profit or Joss are
expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, as described in Note 6.1.1, which results in an accounting loss being recognised in
profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the differeace as follows:

(a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability {i.e. a Level I input) or based on & valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

(b) Inall other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or Joss is determined individually. 1L is either
amortised over the Jife of the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised through
settlement.

i} Financial assets
1. Classification and subseguent measurement

From 1 January 2018, the Group has applied IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL};

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or

» Amortised cost,

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are deseribed below:

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on the nature and purpese of the financial instrument and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Debt instriments
Deht instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as loans, gevernment and corporate
bonds and trade receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements without recousse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

(i) the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

{i1} the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement categories:

< Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(*SPPI"), and that are not designated at FYPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying anoust of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
aliowance recognised and measured as deseribed in Note 6.1. 1. Interest income from these financial assets is included in *Interest and similar income’
using the effective interest rate method.

< Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT): Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assefs,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCE), Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCE, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previousty recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in “Net
Investment income’. Interest income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

v Fairvalue through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI are measuied at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequenily measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging refationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the profit or loss statement within “Net trading income’ in the periad in which it arises, unless it arises from debt
instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented separately in “Net investment income’.
Enterest income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate methed,
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
) Financial asscts and liabilities
Measurement methods
i} Financial assets (continued)
1. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instriments (continued)

Business model: the business madel reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s abjective is solely
to collect the contractuat cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of “other’ business model and measured at
FVPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the business mode] for a Group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers
are compensated. For example, the Group’s business model for the advances baok is to held to coilect contractual cash flows, with no intention to sell these
loans under securitisation or similar arrangements,

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contraciual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the
financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest {he “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether
the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e, interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other
basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility
that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair valse through profit or loss.

Financial asseis with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain & contractual
obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s management has elected, at initial
recognition, to irrevacably designate an equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate inveshinent returss. When this election is used, fair value gains and
losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal, Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continse (e be recognised in profit or
loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established,

(fains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are inciuded in the “Net trading income’ line in the statement of profit or loss.

2. Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (‘ECL’} associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCE and with the exposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:
«  An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
+  Thetime value of money; and
+  Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reperting date about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.

Note 6.1.1 provides more detail of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured.

Write-off

“The Group and Company writes off a loan or an investment in debt securities, partially or fully, and any related provision for impairment loss, when it is
determined that there is no realistic prospect for recovery, This is generally the case when the Group and Company determines that the borrower does not kave
assets or sources of incemne that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group and Company’s pracedures for recovery of amounts due.
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4, Significant aceounting policies (continued)
1§] Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
i) Financial assets (continued)

3. Modification of loans
When the Group renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different 1o the original terms. The Group does this by considering, ameng others, the following factors:

. if the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to amounis the borrower is expected to be
able to pay.

+  Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based retum that substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

+  Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.

«  Significant change in the interest rate.

»  Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

+  Insertion of collatera, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the loan,

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises the origisal financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at fair value and recalculates a new

effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment caleulation

purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group alsa assesses whether the

new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initiaf recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by he

debtor baing unable to make the originaliy agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on

derecognition.

If the terms are not substantiaily different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying,
amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carying amount is
recaleulated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets). The difference between the new gross carrying amount and the original gross carrying amount is recognised as a medification
gain or loss within credit impairments (for distressed financial asset modifications) or in other gains and losses on financial instruments within other operating
income (for all other modifications).

4. Detecognition other than on a modification
Finaneial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets have expired, or when they have
heen transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nior retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained condrol.

The Group may enter into transactions where it retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes a contractual ebligation to pay those
cash tlows to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as “pass through’ transfers that result in
derecognition if the Group:

(i) Has no obligation to make payments unjess it collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i1) s prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(iii} Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the assets without material delay.

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and borrowing transactions are not
derecognised because the Group retains substantialiy all the risks and rewards on the basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for
derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies fo certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual interest.

When the conteactual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the Group applies continuing invelvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognise the associated liability, to
reftect the rights and obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of the transferred asse and associated liability is: (a) the amortised cost of the
rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to the fair value of the rights and obligations
retained by the Group when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is measured at fair value.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
f) Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
ii} Financial liabilities

1. Classification and subsequent measurement

in both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

. Financial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss: this classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions
in the trading booking) and other financial liabilities designated as such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair
vaiue through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive income {the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not attributable to changes in market conditions that
give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation
would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and losses atiributable o changes in the credit risk of the liability are also
presented in profit or loss,

»  Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach
applies. When the transfer of financial esset did net qualify for derecognition, a financial liability is recognised for the consideration received for the
transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability; when continuing involvement approach applies, see
Note 4.)i)4; and

+  Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

2. Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
The exchange between the Group and ifs original lenders of debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well as substantial madifications of the terms
of existing financial liabiities, are accounted for as an extinguisiiment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liabiity, In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the instrument is dencminated in, changes in the type of interest rate, new
conversion features attached to the instrument and change in covenants are afso taken inte consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the Hability and are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.

ifi) Offsctting
Financial assets and financial [iabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group and
Company has a legal right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settie on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability

iv) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with the Central Bank and highly liquid financiat assels with maturities
of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subjeet to an insignificant risk of change in their fair value, and are used by the Group and Company
in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

v) Other receivables
Financial instruments
Other receivables comprise dividends receivable and deposits and sundry debtors which arise during the normal course of business. Other receivables are
secognised when the Group and Company obtains control of a resource as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow
to the Group and Company within the financial year.
Other reccivables are initially measured at fair vajue, which include transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, other receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.

Non-financial instruments
Non-financial other receivables comprise of prepayments. Non-financial other receivables are recognised at cost.

vi} Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at the fair vatue of the consideration to be paid in future for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. Subsequentty these are carried at amortised cost, Trade and other payables that are of a short-terin
nature are not discounted due to the insignificance of the amortisation charge. Trade and other payables arc expected to be settled within twelve months,
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g}

h)

F)]

Y]

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, equipment and right-of-use assets

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the funetionality of equipment is capitalised as part of equipment.

If the significant parts of an item of property, equipment and right-of-use assets have different useful lives, these items are accounted for as a separate item of
property, equipment and right-of-use assets.

Gains and losses on disposal are calculated by the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the itemn determined by comparing
the revenue obtained with the carrying amount and are recognised within other income in net profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits of expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and
maintenance are expensed as they are incurred.

The leaschold improvements are depreciated over the sharter of the fease contract term and their useful lives. The leasehold improvements refate to the
improvements that are made in leased properties.

Depreciation is calculated to write-down the cost of items of property, equipment and right-of-use assets, less their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life, and it is generally recognised in profit or loss Qualifying leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. The estimated useful life of
significant items of property, equipment and right-of-use assets are as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fittings 4 years
Office equipment 5 years
i.casehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Right-of-uge assets - Buildings Shorter of usefu] life or lease term

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group and Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporling date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. If any such indications exist, the assets' recoverable amounts are estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of arn asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated futuee cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the assets.

Employec benefit costs

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the entity pays fixed contributions into a separately managed and owned pension
fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the profit or foss when they are due in respect of service rendered before the end of the reporting period.

Leave days
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A liability is recognised for the estimated obligation for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee incentives and bonus schenes

The Group and Company aiso operates an employee incentive and bonus seheine. The provision for employee bonus incentive is based on a predetermined
Group and Company palicy and is recognised in trade and other payables. The accrual for employee bonus incentive is expected to be setiled within twelve
months,

Short-term benefits
The employees” short-term benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised by the expected value to be paid if the Group has a
current legat or constructive obligation to pay this amount on the hasis of past service provided by the employee and if the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share based payment transactions

The Group and Company operates an equity-settied conditional Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). Conditional share awards are granted to management and
key emplayees. The number of vesting share awards is subject to achievements of certain non-market conditions, The grant date fair value of share awards
granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the peried in which the empioyees become
conditionally entitled to the share awards.

Provisions

Provisions represent liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are measured at the expenditure or cash outflow required fo seftle the present obligation.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group and Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability,
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1)

m}

)

0)

P

Q)

r)

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Equity
Equity is the residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all liabitities of the Group.
All transactions relating to the acquisition and sale or igsue of shares in the Group, together with their associated costs, are accounted for in equity.

Share capital and reserves

Share capita} is recognised at the fair vaiue of the consideration received and any ¢xcess amount over the nominat value of shares issued is treated as share
premiam,

Incremental costs that are disectly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments.

Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liabitity in the period in whick they are declared and are accounted for as a movement in reserves in the
statement of changes in equity. Dividends declared after the statement of financial position date are not recognised as a fiabitity in the statement of financial

positicn.

Contingent liabilities
The Group and Company recognises a contingent liability where it has a possible obligation from past events, the existence of which wili be confirmed only by

the occurrence of one or more uncertain events not whotly within the control of the Group and Company, or it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Related parties
Refated parties comprise directors and key management personned of the Group and Company and companies with coimmon ownership and/or directors.

Investment in subsidiaries
In the company, investments in substdiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.

Cell accounting

A cell captive structure represents an agreement between an insurance entity and the group o facilitate the writing of insurance business. The Group has
entered into an agreement with an insurance company uader which the insurance company has set up an insurance cell withir its legal entity, and the Group has
subscribed for a separate class of share. The arrangement provides that all claims arising from insurance conlracts written by cell are paid out of the cell’s
assets, with any profits after deduction of the insurer’s fees, an allocation taxes, and other costs payable to the Group. In this arrangement, the Group is not
required to maintain the solvency of the cell. Thus, customers of the Group do not transfer significant insurance risk and thus an insurance contract does not
exist. This arrangement is akin to a profit sharing agreement and thus accounted for as an executory contract in terms of IAS 37 . The Group recognises a
financial asset in the financial statement kine "Other receivables” for the right to receive these vested profits that have not been declared but only to the extent
they have performed in terms of the shareholders agreement.

The income is recognised in "Other operating income".
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a)

New standards and amendments to standards

New standards and interpretations and amendments effective for the first time for 31 December 2019 year-end

Standard/Interpretation

Effective date

Execcutive Summary

Amendments to IFRS 9~ ‘Financial
instruments’ on prepayment features with
negative compensation and modification
of financial liabijities.

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 20§9

The narrow-scope amendment covers fwo issues:

» The amendments allow companies to measure particular prepayable financial
assets with so-called negative compensation al amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if a specified condition is met—instead of at
fair value through profit or loss. Tt is iikely to have the biggest impact on banks
and other financial services entities..

« How to account for the modification of a financial liability. The amendment
confirms that most such modifications will resuit in immediate recognition of a
gain or loss. This is a change from common practice under IAS 39 today and will
affect all kinds of entities that have renegotiated borrowings.

IFRS 16 — Leases

Annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2019 — carlier
application permitted if [FRS
15 is also applied.

(published January 2016)

This standard replaces the current guidance in EAS 17 and is a far reaching change
in accounting by lessees in particular.

Under 1AS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease
(on batence sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). [FRS 16 now
requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a
‘right-of-use asset” for viriually all fease contracts. The IASB has included an
optionai exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets;
however, this exempiion can only be applied by lessees.

For lessors, the accounting stays aimost the same. However, as the IASB has
updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the
combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new
standard.

At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact
negotiations between lessors and lfessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

1FRS 16 supersedes FAS 17, ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4, ‘Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15, “‘Operating Leases — Incentives® and SiC
27, ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease’.

Amendments to TAS 19, ‘Employee
benefits’ on plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement.

Annual periods on or after 1
Tanuary 2019

{issued February 2018}

These amendments require an entity to:

« Use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for
the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and
« Recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction in a surplus (recognised or unrecognised). This reflects
the substance of the fransaction, because a surplus that has been used te settle an
obligation or provide additional benefits is recovered. The impact on the asset
ceiling is recognised in other comprehensive income, and it is not reclassified to
profit or loss The impact of the amendments is to confirm that {hese effects are not
offset.
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a)

b}

New standards and amendments to standards (continued})

New standards and interpretations and amendments effective for the first time for 31 December 2019 year-cnd (continued)

Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Investments in
associates and joint ventures® — long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures.

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019

(published October 2017)

The amendments clarified that companies account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture, to which the equity method is not applied, using [FRS 9.
The amendments are effective from 1 January 2019, with early application
permitted.

Annual improvements cycle 2015-2017

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019

(published December 2017}

These amendtments include minor changes to:

« IFRS 3, ‘Business combination’ - a company remeasures its previously held
interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business.

« [FRS 11, Joint arrangements’ - a company does not remeasure its previously held
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint controf of the business.

+ TAS 12, " Income taxes' - the amendment clarified that the income tax
consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified a5 equity should be
recognised according to where the past transactions or events that generated
distributable profits were recognised.

+ 1AS 23, 'Borrowing costs' - 2 company ireats as part of general borrowings any
borrowing originally made io develop arl asset when the asset is ready for its
intentded use or sale.

IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income {ax

treatments’

Annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2019

(pubtished 7 June 2017)

IFRIC 23 provides a framework fo consider, recognise and measure the
accounting impact of tax uncertainties. The Interpretation provides specific
guidance in severzl areas where previously IAS 12 was silent. The Interpretation
aiso explains when to reconsider the accounting for a tax uncertainty, Most
entitics will have developed a model to account for tax uncertainties in the absence
of specific guidance in TAS 12. These models might, in some circumstances, be
inconsistent with IFREC 23 and the impact on tax accounting could be material.
Management should assess the existing medels against the specific guidance in the
Interpretation and consider the impact on income tax accounting.

New standards and interpretations and amendments issued but not effective for 3} December 2819 year-end

Standard/Interpretation

Effective date

Executive Summary

IFRS 17 — Insurance contracts

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which was brought i as an interim Standard in 2004,
IFRS 17 solves the comparison problems created by IFRS 4 by requiring alf
insurance contracts to be accounted for in a consistent manner, benefiting both
investors and insurance companies. Insurance obligatiens will be accounted for
using currend values — instead of historical cost. The information will be updated
regularly, providing more useful information to users of financial statements.

TAS 1 and TAS 8 (amend:menis}

The amendments are effective [
January 2020

The amendments clarify the definition and application of material and how it
should be applied by including in the definition guidance that had previousiy
featured elsewhere in the IFRS Standards. The amendments ensure that the
definition of material is consistent across afl [FRS Standards.

Impact assessmenls

1FRS 17 - Insurance confracts:

+  The Group currently does not hold any insurance contracts that would be subject to IFRS 17. The Group will continue to assess the impact of IFRS 17

going forward.

JAS 1 and TAS 8 amendments:

+  The amendment is not expected 1o have a significant impact on the annual financial statements of the Group.
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6, Financial 1isk managenzent
The Group is exposed 1o markel risks (interest rate risks and currency risks}, credit risks and liquidity risks. The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall process of risk management, as well as forming an opinion on ihe
effectiveness of the risk management process. Management is accountable 1o the Board of Direciors for designing, iniplementing and monitoring the process of risk management.

6.1 Financial risk factors

6,1.1 Credit risk
“Credit isk™ is the risk of financial less to the Group if o custamer or counterparty to g financisl instrument fds to mect it contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's loans and ndvances to cusiomers and other
Groups, and investnienl debt securities. For risk management reporting purposes, the Group considers and consoidates all elements of credit risk exposure — e.g, individunl obligor default risk, country and seclor risk,

Credit risk exists due 1o the faci that ndvances granted to customers are unsecured. The risk is however mitigated by the direct slary deduction colieclion mechanism for the bulk of the loans advanced,

Management of credif risk

The Board of Direelos has delegaled responsibility for the oversight of credit risk to its Credit Committee. A separate Credit depantment, reponting to the Board Credit € ilies, is ible for
Tisk, including the foflowing:

« Ponmulaling credil palicies in consullation will business units, covering collateral requirements, etedis assessment, risk prading and reporting, documentary and legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

» Establishing (he amhorisation structure for the approvel and renewal of credit [acilities, Autharisation limits are aflocated to business wit Credit Qlficers, Larger faellities require approval by the Board Credit Comanities, or the
Board of Directers, a5 appropriaic.

« Reviewing and assessing credit tisk: The Credit function assesses all credit exposuzes in excess of designated limits, bofore facilities are commilied 1o customers by (he business unit concemed. Renewals md reviews of facililies
are subject to the same review process.

» Limiting concentrations of exposure to counterparlies, geographies and industries (for loans and advances, financiol guaraniees and similar exposures), and by issuer, credit rating band, market liquidity and country (for
investment securities).

« Developing and maittaining the Group's risk gradings to calegorise exposures according to the degree of tisk of defiull. The current risk grading framework consists of 7 grades reflecting varying degrees of risk of defautz. The
responsibility for selting risk grades lies with the final approving executive or commitiee, as appropriate. Risk grades are subject Lo regutar reviews by the Risk funclion.

« Developing and maintaining the Group's processes for measuring incurred credit losses (ICL): This includes processes for:

— inilial approval, regular validation and back-testing of the models used; and

~ incorporation of forward-looking inforation.

* Reviewing liance of b units with agreed exposurs limits, ineluding (Lose for selected industries, counlry risk and praduct types. Regular reports on the credit qualily of local portfolios are provided to Group Credit,
which may require appropriate correclive aclion 10 be laken. These include reports conlaining cslimates of ECL allowances.

« Froviding advice, guidance and specialist skills to business unils to promote besl practice throughout tse Group in the nianagement of credil risk.

Each business unit is required lo implement Group credit poticies and procedures, with credit approval authosities delegated frens the Greup Credit Commiltee.

the Group’s credil

Repular sudits of business units and Group Credil processes are undertaken by Internal Audit.

The Group holds 200 “Class H” shares, of par velue N$0.01 each nnd 200 "Class L shares, of par value N$0.01 each, in Hollard Altemative Risk Transfer (Pty) Lid, a cell captive which provides insurance caver for quatifying
credit loss events on the entity's customer advances portfolio. To mitigate credit risk, loans are covered under a cell captive insurance arrangement between Letshego Holdings (Nuamibia) Lid and the cell énsurer, and between
Letshego Micro Financial Services (Namibia) (Ply) Ltd and the cell insurer. Loans onginaled as [rom 15 Cetober 2019 amounling to NAD930m were not covered under the cell caplive insurance amangement.

Credit risk measarenteni - Loans and advances

"The eslimation of credit exposure for risk managenien! purposes is complex and requires 1he use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of (ime. The assesstent of
credit risk of o portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defauls occurming, of the associated Joss ratios and of default corselations between counterparties. The Group measures credit risk using
Probability of Defuuit (PD), Exposure t Default (EAD) ond Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used for the purposes of messuring Expected Credi Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9. Refer to the "Expected credit
loss” section below for more details.

Credit risk gruding

‘The Group uses an intemal €S ("Collectability Status™) classification for the purposes of reflecting its assessment of the prababilily of defauli of individual counteiparties. The C5 is defined rs the sumber of days that an account is
in arrears. The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of default increases exponentially as the credil grades deteriorate. After initial recognition, the pryment behaviour of the borrower is nionitared on a periedic basis in
order to derive the C8.

The Group's rating method comprises 7 rating levels. The tating methods are subject lo an annual validation and recafibration so that they reflect the tatest projections in the light of actually observed defaults. The Group's inlemal
rating scale is set out below:

Collectahility Status Mo of Bays overdua Rating

01 Cumenl Minimal sk

02 Cument Lowrisk

03 31 ~- 60 days Medium sisk

04 61 - 90 days Medium gk

03 91 — 180 days Special monitoring
06 181 - 160 days Doubtful

07 > 360 days Doubiful

Expecied credit loss measirement

IFRS 9 outlines n “three-stage’ model for impaimment based on changes in credit quality since initial recagnitlon as summarised below:

+ A financial instrement that is nol credit-impaired on initial recogisition is classified in “Stage 1' and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Group,

« Il asignificant increase in credit risk {*SICR’) since initial recogrition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to “Stage 27 but is not yet deemed 10 be credit-impaired. Pleass refer to the "Significant increase in credit
risk" seclion below for a description of how the Group delermines when a significant increase in credit risk has occumed.

+  Ifthe financial instrement is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is Then moved te ‘Stage 3', Please refer 10 the "Definition of default and credit-impaired assets” section below for a description of how the Group defines

credit-impaired and default.

Financial instrumenls in Stage 1 have their EC1, measured al an amount egual (o the portion of lifetime expecied credil losses that resull fiom default events possible within the next 32 nzonths, Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have

theit ECL measured based on expecled credil losses on a lifetime basis. Please refer to the "Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumplions and estimalion lechniques” section below for a descriplion of inpuls,

assumptions and estimation techniques used in measwring the ECL.

» A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordmnce with IFRS 9 is that il should consider [onward- looking informntion. The "Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models” seclion below includes an
explanation of how the Group has incorporated this in its ECL models.

«  Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit- impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is alwnys measured on a Hifilime basis (Stage 3).

The following diagram summarises the impaizment requirements under IFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated eredit-impaized financial assets):

Change in credit quatity sinca Inlilal recogntion

Stage1 Staga 2 l Saged

i In cradi cisk {Creait-impalred assals)
sinta inflal recogrition)

32-month expecied tredil kossss Lifebir expacted cledi losses Lifetme expectad credt kossas
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6.1 Financial risk factors {continued}

6.1,k Credit risk (contiaued}
Blanagement of eredit risk (continued)
Expected crediit Tass measurement (continited)

d betow:

‘The key judgements and assumptions adopied by the Group in addressing the requi s of the dard are

Significant increase ki eredit risk (SICR)

The Greup considers a financial instrumenl to have expeti d a significant i in credit risk when one ar more of the following guanlilative, qualitative or backstop crileria have been met:
Quanlit criteri
The renuaining Lifetime P13 at the reporting date has increased, compared Lo the residual Lifetime PD expecled at the reporting date when the exposure was first recognised if the delinguency position has deleriorated since initial
recagnition. For example, the migration of a loan from the 30 days past due bucket would indicate a sipnilicant increase in credit risk.

Qualitalive crjens

For Retail porifolios, if the borrower meets one or more of the fotlowing criteria:

«  In shon-temm forbeatance

+  Direct debit cancellation

+  Bxtension Lo the terms pranted

+  Previous arrears within e last & monihs

For Wholesale and Treasury porifotios, if the borrower is on the Watch-list and/or the instrament maets one o more of the following criteria:

+ Significant incresse in credii spread

« Signilicant adverse changes in business, financial and/or economic conditions in which the bomower operates

«  Actual or expected forbearance or restruchaing

«  Actual or expected significanl adverse change in opernting results of the borrower

«  Signilicant change in collateral value (secured facilities only) which is expected 10 increase risk of defaull

+  Early signs of cosh AlowAiquidity problems such as delay in servicing of rade credilors/loans

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-loakéng information (refer to 1o the "Forwsrd-loaking information incorporated in the BCL models” section below) and is performed on a quarterly basis ot a porifoliv level for all
Relzil financial insiuments held by the Greup, In wlation to Wholesate nnd Freasury financial instrumens, where a Watch-list s used to monitor credit sk, this assessment is performed al the counterparty level and on a periodic
basis. The critetia used 10 identity SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for appropristeness by the independent Credit Risk team.

Backsiop;
A backstop is spplicd and the Grancial instument considered to have experienced a significant incredse in credil dsk il botrower is more than 30 days past dus en ils conlractual payments.

Deafinition of default and credit-hmpaired assels
The Group defines a financial instrument as in deCault, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit- impaired, when it meels one or mote of the following criteria:

Ouantitative criteria;

The berrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

Oualitative crileda

The borrower meets unliketiness to pay criterin, which indicates the borzower is in significant financial difficully. These are instances where:

+ The borrower is in long-lem forbearance

+  The borrower is deceased

+ The borrower is insolvent

+  The borrower s in breach of Gnancial covenani(s)

«  An active market for (hat financial asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties

«  Material concessions have been made by the Group relating to the bamrower's financial difficulty

« Itis becoming probable that (he borrower wili enter bankrapicy

«  Financial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credil losses.

The criterin abeve have been applied to all fnancial instroments held by the Group and are consistent with the delinilion of defhuli used for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has been applied
congistently 1o model the Probability of Defaull (PDY), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given Defaull (LGD} throughout the Group’s expeoted loss caleulations.

At instrurnent is considered to no longer be iz default (i.e. 1o have cured) when it no Longer meeis eny of the defaullt criteria for a consecutive period of six menths. This period of six menths has been determined based on an
anabysis which considers the likelihood of a financial instrument retuming to default status alter cure using dilferent possible cure definitions,

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, tons and estimati hnigues

The Expecied Credil Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credif risk has oceured since initial recognition ar whether an asset is considered to be
credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounled product of the Probability of Defsult (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD}, and Loss Given Default (LGRY, defined as follows:

« 'The PD, which is developed by applying a maturity profile of how defaults develop from initiation through the lifelime of the loan, represents the likelihood of a borrower defsulting on its financial obligalion {as per
“Definition of default azd credit-impaired” ubove}, either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifelime PD) of the obligation.

+  EAD is based on the amounts the Group expeels to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifelime EAD). For example, for a revolving commilinent, the Group
includes the current drawn balance plus any farther amount that is expected 1o be drawn up to $he current contractuat limit by the time of defaull, should il occur.

»  Loss Given Default (LGD) rep the Grroup's exy ien of the sxtent of loss en o defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, lype and seniority of cloim and aveifabilily of collateral or other credit support.
LGB is expressed as o percentage loss per unit of exposure al the time of default (EAD). LGD} is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-nionth LGD is the parcentage of loss expected 1o be made if the defasl(
oceurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of foss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remeining expected lifetime of the loan,

+  The Group’s advances to customers typically comprse ol high volume and lower vatues, therefore a significant parfion of the impairmennt is caleutated on a portfblio basis. M idered the ion althe Joan
book and determined that the loan consists of only otie segment, namely Govemment employees. The non-geverment segment (which is expected lo have o different risk profile), is less than 2% of the total porifolio (which is
the Threshold used in the model), thus managenent has not identified that segment as a separate sepment for the purpose of the impairment assessmen!.
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6.1 Fi iak visk Factors (continned}

6,1,1 Credit risk {continued)

Managenieat of credif risk {rontiesned}
Expected credit loss meusnrenrent {continned)

Adeaswring ECL ~ Ixple ion of inphls, and estimaif {co
g & i Y

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each fature month and for each individual exposurs or collective segment. These three compenents are multiplied together and edjusted lor the likelihood of
survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulled in an arlier month). This elfeetively catculates an ECL for gach fulure month, which is then discounted back 1o the repeding date and sumnied, The discount rate used in the
ECL calculalion is the original effective intersst rale or m spproximation therzof.

The Lifetime P is developed by applying a maturity profile 1o the current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaulls develop on a portfolic from the point ol initial recognition throughout the lifetime of the loans, The
malurity profile is based on historical observed data and is assunied 10 be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and Lifetime BEADs e determined based on the expected payiment profile, which varies by product type.

«  For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, (his is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrawer over s 12month or lifelire basis. This will also be adjusied for any expected overpayments made by a
bomower, Eatly repayment/relinance assumplions are also incorporated into the caleulnion,

+ For tavolving praducts, the exposure at defavli is predicted by Laking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the renmaining limit by the time of defiall. These
assumptions vary by product fype and current Simit utilisation band, based on snafysls of the Group's recent default data.

The 12-month and {ifetinie LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries made post default. These vary by product type.

«  For secured producls, this is primarily based on colinteral lype and profecied cotlateral values, hislorical discounts to marketbook vatues due 1o Torced sales, lime to repossession and recovery costs chserved.

+ For unsecured produsts, LGD's are typically set at product level due to the limiled differentiation in recoverios achieved accoss differant borrowers. These LGD's are influenced by collection strategies, ineliding contracted
debt safes and price.

Forward-looking economic information & alse inciuded in determining the 12-monith and lifetime PD, EAD ond LGD. These assumptions vary by product type. Refer to the "Forward-locking information incorporated in the ECL

models" section below for an explanation of forward- looking informatien snd its inslusion in ECL calewlations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL. calculation -~ such as how the matuity profile ¢f the PDs and how collateral values change etc. — are monitored and reviewed on 1 quarterly basis.

v

There have been no significant changes in estimation iques or gignificant ions made during the reporting period.

Forward-fooking infermation incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and (he calculation of ECL bolh incarporate forward-looking informatien. The Group has performed historical analysis and idenlified the key economic verinbles impaciing credit risk and expected credit
losses for each ponfolio.

These economic variables and their associaled impact on the B, EAD and LGD vary by linancial instrument. Expert judgment has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of thess economic variebles {the “base economic
scenario”) are provided by the Group’s Economics leam on n quarterly basis and provide the besl estimate view of the econonyy over the next five years, After five yeass, lo project the economic variables out for the full remaining
Tifetime of sach instrument, a mean reversion approach has been used, which means thel econonic variables fand to sither a Jong ruin average rate (e.g. for unemployment) or a long run average growth rate (e.g. GDP) over s petiod
of two 10 five years. The impact of these economic vaziables on the PD, BAD and 1.GID has been detennined by performing statistical regression analysis to understand the impact chimges in these variables have had historically on
delnuM rates and on the components of LGD and EAD.

In addition Lo the base econantic scenario, other possible scenarios along with scenario weightings sre also provided. The number of other scenarios vsed is sel based on the analysis of each major product fype 1o ensure non-
linearities are captured. The number of scenarios and their attibutes are renssessed at each reporting date. The scenario weighlings are determined by a combination of statistical analysis and expert credil judgernent, taking account
of the range of possible cutcomes each chosen scenario is representative of. The assessment of SICR is pexformed using the Lifetime PD under each of the base, and the other scenarios, multiplied by the associated scenario
weighting, slong with qualitative and backstop indicators. This delermines whether the whale financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage 2, or Siage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be recorded. Following this
assessntent, the Group mensures ECL as either o probabilily weighted 12 month ECT (Stage 1}, or a probabifity weighted lifetime ECL (Stnges 2 and 3). These probability-sweighied ECLS are d ined by renning each scenario
through the relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting (as opposed to weighting the inpuis).

As with any ecoriomic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncerainty and therefore the actual oulconies may be significantiy different 10 those projected, The Group
considers these forecasts to represent its best eslimate of the possible outconnes and hias analysed the non-linearities aid asymimetries within the Group's different porifolios 1o establish that ke chosen seanarios afe apprapristely
representative of the range of possible scenarios.

Economic variables:

Consumser Price Endex (CPT) - CPIis ihe rate at which the general price level for goods and services is rising and consequently, the purchasing power of money is falting. In pericds of high inflation, poods and services often
increase in price at a faster pace than wage growth. Bomowers can have a herder lime paying back loans as inflation fses. Their living expenses go up during infiastionary periods and if wages do not keep pace with inflation they
iy reach a point where they cannot pay all of their obligations. This scenario may lead to an increase in the probability of loan defaulls o individuals experience a decrease it their relative purchasing power. CPLis thus the most
significant economic variable affecting the ECL aflowaice for the retail portiolic.

Gther forward-looking considerations rot otherwise incorporated within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative or political changes, bave also been considered, but are not deemed to have a malesial
impact and therefore no adjustment has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for approprialeness on a quarterly basis.

The following table shows the main ic factor used to estimate the oxpecied credil foss aliowance on loans. Fhe model is based on a weighting of 50/30/20 for the Base, Upside and Downside scenario. The remaining
forecast period is 4 years.

Base scenario Upside seenario Downstde scenmrio ]

Macroeconomic factor Next 12 months] Reinaining forecast period| Next 12 months | Remaining fovecnst periad] Next 12 menths Remaining forecast perind
2019
Namibig CPI (%) 314 3.86 471

Sensitivity anafysis of IFRS 9 ECL

The fellowing table shows & comparison of the Group's expected credil logs allowanee under IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2019 based on the probability weighlings (Base: 50%, Upside: 30%, Downside: 20%) of ths above-
mentioned three scenarios against the expected credit foss allownnce resulting from simulations of each scenario being weighted al 100%.

Expected credit Foss % change of
expected credit loss
N$ provisien
Current expecied credit loss provision 28,071,902
Scenarios:
Base 28,042,091 -0.13%
Upside 26,967,787 -3.95%
Downside 29,832,598 6.25%

Grouping af instriunents for losses measwred on a collective basis
For expected credil toss provisions nzedelied on a collective basis, a grouping of expesures is performed on e basis of shared risk characterislics, such that risk expesures within a group are homogensous.

tn performing this grouping, here miust be sullivient information for the group 1o be stalistically credible. Where sullicient infarmalion is not aveilable intemally, the Group has considered benchmarking intemalfexiernal
supplementary dala 1o use for modelling purposes. The delinquency status is used to determine the groupings.




LETSHEGO HOLPINGS (NARIRIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 3F December 2019

6.5 Financial risk factors (continued)
6.8 Credit visk (continued)
Mlanagement of credit risk (continged)
Credit risk expasitre
Maximum exposire to eredit risk - Financial instriments subject to bnpairment

The fallowing table contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for which an ECL aflowance is recognised. The gross camying ainount of financial assels below also represents die Group's maxinung
exposure Lo credit risk on fhese assels.

Advances ta customess
2019 2018
ECL Staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totat Total
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifelime ECL
NS N$ N§ N§ N3%

Credit grade
Low risk {CS01 - C502) 2,793,373,367 - - 2,793,378,367 2.402,203845
Medium risk (C803 - C304) - 24,985,605 - 24,985,605 61,533,113
Special monitoring {CS05) - 20,319,487 - 20,319,487 26,543,726
Doubiful (€566 - CSG7) - - 124,735 592 124,735,592 R7.473.680
Grogs cirying smouet 2,793378,367 45,305,992 124,738,892 2,963 419,051 2,577,754,366
Loss allowance (15,753.951) (889 406) (11,434,555) (28 007 902) (22,132,776)
Careying asiount 2,717,624,416 44y415,686 113,391,047 2,935,341,149 2,955,621,550

Iafomation on how the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) s measured and how the three siages above are determined is included in the “Expected credit loss measurement” section above.
Loss alfawarnce

The Loss allowance recognised in 1he period is impacted by a variety of faclors, os described below:

+ Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 dug to fizancial instrumenls experiencing signifieant increases (or decreases) of credit risk ot becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” {or “step downr™)
Between 12-month gnd Lifetime ECL;

+  Additional allowances for new financial instrumenls recognised during the period, ns well as releases for i iel instriments d ised in the peried;

+ Impact on the measurement of ECL due lo changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular refreshing of inputs to modets;

= Impacts on the measurenient of ECL dus to changes made to models and assumptions;

»  Discount uawind within ECL dug 1o ths passags of linw, as ECL is measured on a present velue basis;

« Foreign exch lations for assets d i d in foreign cumrencies and other moverenis; and

+  Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-olTs of allowances relaled 1o assels that were written off during the period [see Note 4.0)}].

The following tables explain the changes in [he loss allowance between the beginniag and the end of the annual period due to these factors:

Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 * Total
Advanees lo cuslemers 12-month BCL Lifelime ECL Lifetime ECL H
Nf NS N$ N§
Leoss altowance as at [ Janwary 2019 4,170,894 1,154,167 16,807,715 20,132,776
Transfers belween stages
Transfer from Siage § fo Stage 2 (33,356) 443,130 390,174
Transler from Sisge § to Stage 3 (119,062) 4,604,101 4,485,039
"Transler from Stage 2 to Stage 3 {172,811 745,682 572,871
Transter from S1age 3 to Stage 1 1,085 (29,138} (28,053)
Transfer from $1age 3 to Slage 2 10,537 (50,351) (40,314)
Teansfer from Stage 2 30 Slage | 5438 {40,439} (35,001)
Net ECL raised / {released) 11,744,152 (303,778) 29,084,407 100,327,781
Impaired accounts written off {99,727 371 {99.727 371}
Loss alfewance as at 3f December 2019 15,753,951 889 406 11,434,545 28,077,902
Loss algywance ag at £ Jaguary 2018 4,656,027 245,325 8,761,991 13,063,342
Transfers belween slages
Transfer from Stage 1 10 Stage 2 (40,078 495,731 455,653
Transfer from Stage 110 Stage 3 (147,381) 9,166,142 9,018,761
Trensfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 {133,194) 793,225 660,031
‘Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 5413 {220,338) (214,925)
Transfer from Stage 3 1o Stage 2 9,215 (60,386} (51,371)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Siage | 6,989 (37,814) (50,825)
Mel ECL raised / {released) 289,925 594,904 89,642,826 90,527,655
Impaired accounts wrilten ofl (91,275.743) (91215 145)
Loss allowanee ns ad 31 Deceher 2068 4,170,854 1,E54,867 16,807,715 23131776

*  Includes inleresl in suspense

Signilicant changes in the gross carrying amount of finaneial assets that contributed 1o changes in the loss allowance were as follows:
+ The write-0fI'of loans with atota! gross camrying amount of NAD 99.7 million (2018: NAD} 21.3 million) which resulted in the reduction of the Stage 3 loss aflowance by the same amount,




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBEA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
for {ke year ended 31 December 2012

6,1 Finnnclal visk factors (eentinued)

6.1.1 Credit risk (continued)
Management of eredif risk (continued)
Loy aflewance {confined)

“T'he following lable further explains changes in i gross carrying smount of the advances portfolio to help explain their significance 1o the changes in the Joss allowance for the same portfolio as discussed above:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Todnl
Advances te customers 12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
N§ N3 N§ NE

Gross careying amonnt as at 1 Janvary 2019 2,402,203,845 88,076,841 87,473,680 2.577,754,366
Transfers:

Transfer from Stags 1 to S1age 2 {22,915,038} 22,015,038 - -

Transler from Stage 1 16 Stage 3 {55,495,255) - 55,495,255 -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (8,939,776} 8,939,776 -

Transfer from S1age 3 to Siage ) 302,215 - {302,275) -

Transfer from S1age 3 to Stage 2 - 537,223 £537,223) -

Treansfer from Siage 2 to Stage | 2,081,310 (2,081,391) - -
Financial assels desecognised during the pesiod other than write-ofts (1,687,495,993) (188,793 489) - (1,876,289.482)
New financin! assets originated 2,154,697,142 133,590,616 73,193,750 2,361,681,538
Write-offs (99.721.371) (95,727,371}
Gross earrying smount a5 at 31 December 2019 2,793,378,367 45305,092 124,738,592 2.963419,651
Gross earrying amowunt as at 1 Fanuary 2018 2,341,584,E73 29977891 65,723,387 2437,285,451
Transfers:

Transfer fror Stage 1 to Stage 2 {16,873,695) 16,873,695 - -

Transfer from Stage 1 1o Stage 3 (57,306,656) - 57,306,656 -

Transfer from Stage 2 (o Slage 3 - (4,747,357) 4,747,857 -

Transfer frony Stage 3 to Stage 1 1,262,405 - (1,262,405} -

Transfer [rom Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 344,079 {344,079 -

Transfer from Siage 2 to Stage 1 2,059,425 {2,059,425) - B
Financial asseis derecognised during the period other thar wrile-offs {1,428,600,631) - - (1,428,600,631)
New financial assels onginaled ’ 1,560,078,824 47,688 458 52,578,009 1,660,345,291
Write-offs (91.275,745) (91,275 745)
Grass canying amaount as n¢ 31 December 2018 2,402,203,845 88,076,841 81473680 2.577,754,366

The Group's exposure to credit risk cas ba divided inlo lwo categories

- Advances

- Financial assels other than advances

Balances with the central bank are not subjected to ECL consideralions due to the rigorous regulatory requirenients of these transactions and its dink 1a the underlying entities ubilily 1o operate as a bank. These amounts represent
deposits placed in fegal teader as issued by the central bank.

e 10 hislorical experience intercompany receivables measured sl amortised cost are regarded as a low probability of default and the ECL i respect of these is considered smmaterial.

Due 1o the shorl term nature of cash and cash equivalents and other receivables as well 2s hisiorical experience, these assets measured at smortised cost are regarded as having alow probability of default and the ECL in respect of
1hese is considered immaierial,

Advaunces

The Group's principle business is (o provide loans to individuals in both the formal and informal sector, Customers ate assessed in full every time they apply for credit to delermine if their credit profite remains acceptable in 1erms
of the credit policies of the Group. Ali of the Group's business is conducled in the Republic of Namibia, The demagraphic credit characteristics of the customer base expose the Group to sysiemic credit nisk. The Group mitigaies
this risk by applying the Group's spplicath d, a st of busi rdes and affordability assessmenls,

The nolure of e loan book is such that it is made up of smaller sized loans across 2 spectrum of econoimic sectors and provinges. Leans granted al origination range from  rinimum of N$1,000 to a maximum of N$300,000 and
repayment periods ranging from o minimum of 6 menths to 2 maxinuun of 60 months. By its nature, the carrying amount a1 year énd for unsecured toans reprasents the Group’s mexioum exposure to credit risk. The Group does
have insurance cover to credit events arising fram the death of customers; permanent and temporary disability and retrenchments.

Credit philosophy
The credil philosophy of the Group is o pay primary emphasis of the credit decision on the horrowsr's thility to service the loan. Iis therefore eritical o establish e customer’s sbilily to service their loan instalments.

The of the alfordability is done in two parts, the first ensuring comspliance wilh the regalatory puidelines, and second the Group employs fls own eredil dsk model alferdability cateulation, based on n
Tepaytent 16 income ratio model. A minimum of the affordability assessment and the credit sisk model is used 1o determine the maximur instaiment the custener can be offered, limited to the product maximum limits.

Credit risk assessment

The Group caleulates credit scores for applicants and further groups these scores into risk groups (which have similar dsk expectations). The credit scoring engine is configured with the credit policy paramelers and is embedded in
the system, prevenling human intervention which can result in breach of policy, The vedfication and inputs into the credit score sysiem include:

- Physica! idenlification of the customer via their identification docunient and prool of address;

- The custamer’s 3 month incame, monthly living cxpense, declaralion of financial obligations, wage frequency, employer and bank delails are captured;

- Electronic Credit Bureau data obtained;

- The captured details, the customer’s bureau record, and the customers” histoneal performance o existing losns is used by the Applicalion Scorecard to determine the customars' risk;

- the is then d against the bysi rules; and

- To mitigate against fraud. compliance and credil risk, the customer's compleled application flows to the Guatity Control Departiment.

Credit monitering

The Group utilises verious reporting and monitoring tools to engage in and conlrol ongaing credil risk within the credit life-cycle. These include the ollowing:
- Real lime monileting on application volumes, approval tates ond processing quality;

- Credit efficiency reporis;

- Vintage collection reports 1o establish the initial recovery process efliciency;

- Credit aging reponts to manage end controt Joan delinquency and provisiening;

- Active payment, collection snd integrity frend analysis Lo control and manage underlying risks and movemenl within (he day 1o day operational procedures.

The Group’s credil ruanagemenl team Taviens ¢xception cepotts produced by (he reporting and monitoring taols on a daily, weekly and monthily basis, depending on the type of exceplion report produced by the ciedit monitaring
syslem and acls as early wamning indicators which the credit management team aclively monages. The respective credit management team memibers repert direcily 10 the senior credit executive. Trends and eardy waming indicators
identified are discussed at Risk Commitlee meetings and where necessary preveniative action is initiated, if not done so already by the senior credil executive.
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6.1 T Erisk factars (conti ]

6.1.1 Credit risk (continued)
Mlanapgement of credit risk {confinued)
Advarces fcantinned)

Colfection and restructires

The collections fanetion within the Group relotes 1o the elfective collections of any monies due and payable by the castomer, Core to the colleclion function is the moniloring of the payment patlerns of'accounts and 1o encourage
custorners Lo pay their accounts timeously and pay their arrears in 1he shortest fimeframe &s possible. Deduction mandates are obtained [rom cuslomers in their loan contracts and are made from their primary bank account (wvhers

the customer’s salacy is deposited). Where collection is unsuccessful, arrears follow wp is performed initially through the call centre,

The Group operates two lypes ol restructures — namely, informal indulgences and fonnal restructures. Informat indulgences are where cusiomers request a lower repaymentfinstalnient amovnl referred to as 3 promise Lo pay. Formal

restnzctures relale to debt counselling, administration orders and court orders.

Txfernal recovery

The Transfer Policy prescribes when an account will move into the Legal Collections division. Once an account has been transferred into £.egal Collections, the account wisl be allocated 1o a departimens either in In-house or

Outsonrced Collections based on current intemal business nules.

Credit quality

Analysis of credit quality

Financini assets that arve nefiher past due nor specifically impaived
Stage 1

Past due amd specifically impnived

Slage 2

Stage 3

Totad credit exposure

Total impainments
Stage 1

Slage 2

Stage 3

Net advances

Impairment as a % of gross ndvances

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total impairment as a % of 1otal gross advances

Recenciliation of allowance sccowat

Balance al lhe heginning of the year

IFRS 9 remeasurement adjustment

Irnpairment provision raised (note 10)

Inpaiement provision released upon write-offs of underlying exposure
Bakance at the end of the year

GROUP

31 Becember 2019
Advances
NS

1,793,378,367

45,305,092

o J24735592
T 3ps3dingsL

(15,753,951)
(889,406)
(11,434,545)

2935,341,149

0.56%
£.96%
9.17%
1.95%

22,§32,776
105,672,497

{99,727371)

28,077,962

31 December 2018
Advarces
NS

2,402,203 845

88,076,841
87.473,680

2,577,754,366

(5,133,243
(983,431)

16,016,102)
2,553,621,580

92i%
294%
1641%
086%

13,063,342
(3,953,826)
104,209,007
91,275,747}
22,132,776

COMPANY
33 Decentber 2019 3F December 2018
Advances Advances
N§ N3
0.90% 0.00%
0.06% 0.00%
0.96% 0.00%
0.08% 0.00%

a5




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS {NAMEIBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2019

6.1 Financinl risk factors (contioued)

61,1 Credit visk (ceatinued)
Management ol credit risk (continued)
Advarices (confinned}

Credit risk impacis
Credit quality ol advences neither past due nor impaized:

For public sector employee loans the onty eredit risk being faced by loans in the group is default of the: Namibian govemmen! and termination of employment on a voluntary

basis or dismissat that cannot be seen as setrenchmest.

Insurance would cover lasses in the evenl of denth, permanent disability, involunlary retirement or retrenchment, ‘The performing boek (i.¢. no instalments in arrenes) is not further segmented inte risk categories.

Concentration Risk

Credit coneentration risk s the sk of loss to the Group arising fron: an exeessive concenlration of exposure 1o a singlé counterpany, induslzy, markel, producl, region or malurity, This concentration typically exits when a number
of counterparties are engaged in siniilar activities and have similar characterislics that would cause their ability Lo meet contraciual obligations lo be similarly affecled by changes in economic and other conditions.

Although the Graup is exposed to unsecured personal loans, the Group’s credit risk partfolia is well diversified across individuals who are geographically spread across the covnloy's reglons.

The following table breaks down the Group’s credil exposure al camying amount es categorised by Loan size and original loan advanced.

Loans

Carrying amount
% of total carrying

(net of impairment)

Avernge kean vatae (at inceptisn) Number of loans % of totaf sbumber ol loans amoust
N$
2019 - Group
<5000 1,661 2.06% 4,098,139 $.14%
5009 - 109000 7,365 9.14% 36,574,468 1.25%
10 0D% -20 090 14,556 18.07% 143,337,660 4.88%
20 08¢ - 50 080 45,666 56.68% 1,458,477,498 4B.32%
> 50 060 EE326 14.05% 1,332,853,384 45.41%
Todal 80,574 106.00% 2,935,341,149 100.00%
Carrylng amouat

(net of impnirment)  ¥6 of fotak carrying
Average loan value {nt inception) Nusnber of loans %% of total number of feans aenount
2018 - Group
<5000 2,553 241% 6,571,542 0.26%
50060-10 000 11,536 10.88% 60,914,631 238%
E0 000 -20 000 22,099 20.84% 228,055,684 8.92%
20 000 - 50 000 69,520 65.57% 2,210,593,872 86,50%
> 5G 000 316 0.30% 49483 861 1.94%
Tatal 196,024 100.00% 2,555,621,590 108.00%

The concentration tisk per employer is as fallows:

- Public sector 98%
- Other empleyers 2%
No cellaterat is held for these advances,

36




LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
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6.1 Financiak risk factors {continued)

6,1,1 Credit risk (continged)
Management of credit risk (continued}
Financial aysefs other than ndvatices

A} financial assels other than advances are made up of cash and cash equivalents, slatutory assets, dedvalive assets and Irade receivables. All financial assels other than advances, excluding trade receivables and loans 1o affiliate
companies are placed wilh reputable counterpaies.

The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents and short fermi i with various fi ial institations and in this separd it is he Group's palicy lo limit ils exposure 10 sy one financial justitution. Cash deposits are placed
only wilh banks which have an approved credit limiz, as recommended by the ALCO and approved by ibe Board Audit and Risk Committee.

Trade receivables are evaluated on an entity by entily basis. The Group Jimils the tenure and size of ke debl Lo ensure fhat it dogs not pose a material risk to the Group. For lurther information refer to Note 9.1,

At balance sheet date the intemelional long-term credil rating, using Moody's ratings was us follows for cash and cash equivalents:

Single largest
expesure {0 a
single counter-

Total carvying ameant party Anato A3 Baal to Baal Below Baad Not rated
NS NS N$ NS N§ N3

2019 - Group
Cash and cash equivalents 99,477,373 70,752,178 99,477,373 - - -
Deposils with Bank of Namibia 48,108,782 48,108,782 48,103,782 - - -
Financial assels a1 amonised cost 13,978,808 13,978,808 13,978,808 - - -
Other receivables 138,179,708 132,766,764 - - - 188,179,108
Total 349,744,671 265,606,532 161,564,963 - - 188,179,708
2018 - Group
Cash and cash equivalenls 681,985,751 442,408,971 681,985,751 - - -
Deposits with Bank of Namibia 68,374,571 63,874,571 68,874,571 - - -
Qther receivables 131,287,964 117,148,723 - - - 121,287 964
Total 882,148,286 678,432,265 750,860,322 - - 131,287,964
269 - Compsiny
Cash and cash equivalents 179,513 179,513 179,513 - - -
Olher receivables 50,211,880 50,211,880 - - - 50,211,880
Intescompany receivable 15.315,541 15315541 - - - 15,315,541
Total 65,106,934 65,706,934 179,513 - - 65,527 421
2018 - Company
Cash and cash equivalents 1,119,927 1,119,927 5,119,927 - - -
Oilier receivables 18,203,676 18,203,676 - - - 18,203,676
Intercompany receivable 1,355.073 1,355,073 - - - 1,355,073
Totat 20,678,616 20,678,676 1,119.927 - - 15,558,749
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6. Fi inl visk factors tinued}

6.5.2 Market visk
“Markel risk” is the risk that changes in market prices — £.g. iuterest rates, equily prices, foreign exchonge rates and credit spreads (nof relating to chonges in the obligor’sfissuer's credil standing) ~ wili affect the Group’s income or
the value ol i3 holdings of financiat instruments. Market risk arises from open posilions in interest rates and foreign curtencies, both which are exposed to gener! and specilic market movements and changes in the level of
valatility. The objective of the Group®s markel risk management is lo manage aid control market risk exposures within acceplable parameters to ensure the Group’s solvency while oplinising the retum on sk,

6.1.2.1 Intezest rate risk management
The Group separates ils exposure to markel risks between trading and non-trading portfolios. Trading porifolios include positions arising fron market rnaking, together with financial assets and (inancial Jisbilities that are managed

on a [air value basis. Cumently, the Group only has a non-trading por folic.
Interest rate risk for the purposes of [FRS is the risk thal the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in rmarket interest rates.
The Group has interes! rale risk arising in its financia assets and from ils holdings in cash and cash equivalents. However the Greup's most signiGeant financial assel is its fixed rate advances portfolio.

For the purposes of IFRS 7, the Group is nol exposed Lo interest rate 1isk on the fixed rate advance porifolio, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will flucluate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group secks ta achieve funding thai is al a simitarly fixed rale as that of the advances portfelio,

# is not always feasible (o raise fixed rate funding and therefore the Group may have a niix of fived and vazioble rate funding instruments. Varisble rate funding instraments expose the Group 1o interest rate risk for the purposes of
iFIS, Currently, the Group's funding is mainly from the variable interest rate foan from the ultimate holding company..

Risk measurement and management

Overall authority for market rigk is vesied in the Asset and Liabilily Commitles {ALCO). ALCO sels up limits for each type of risk in nggregete ond for porifolies, with market and liquidity Tisks being primary factors in
determining the fevel of limits set for trading postfolics.

ALCO is the meniloring bady for complimce with these limits and is assisted by Managemen in ils day-to-day monitoring ativities, These day-lo-day activitics inchude monitoring changes in the Group's inlerest rale exposures.
which inciude the impact of the Group™s oulstanding or forecast debt obligations.

ALCQ is responsible for seiling the overall hedging strategy of the Group. Mi is respensible for impl ing Lhat stralegy by puiting in place the individual kedge orrangements.

The ALCO viens interest rate in the banking book to comprise of the following:

- Re-pricing sisk (mismatch 1isk), being the timing difTerence in the majurily {for fixed} and re-pricing (for foating rate) of the Group's assets and liabilities, and

- yield curve risk, which includes the changes in the shape and slope of the yield curve,

ALCO marilors md manages these risks in adharenea to the Group’s Tisk appetite and 1els on & monthly basis ta analyse the impact of interest zate sk an the Group and reponts directly lo the Board Audit and Risk Commiliee
on & quarterly basis. The technigues used 1o measure and control interest rate risk by he ALCO includes ce-pricing profiles, sensitivity/scenario analysis and stress tesling,

I the conlext of re-pricing profiles, instruments are atlocated 10 time periods with relerence {0 the earlier of the next eonteactusl interest rate re-pricing date and the maturity dats. Instruments which have no explicit contractual re-
pricing or maturiiy dales are piaced in time buckets based on the most likely re-pricing behaviour.

Sensitivity and slzess lesting consisls of a combination of stress scenarios and historical slress movements.

Given the extent of the risk and the current risk mitigants, a nore sophisticated (e.g. value-at-risk) analysis is no! considered necessary.
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6. Financial risk factors {continued)
6.12 Dlarket risk {confinued}
6.52.1 Interest rafe eisk mansgement {contivsed)

Mterest rafe sensitivify analysis

‘Two separale interest rate sensilivity analyses for the Group are set out be in the lable below, namely the re- pricing profile and the potential effect of changes in the markel intercst rale on camings for [oating rate instrunients.

i) Re-pricing profile

The 1ables below summarise the re- pricing exposure 1o inlerest rale risk through grouping sssets and lisbilities into re-pricing categories, determined o be the earlier of the contraciual re-pricing or maturity date, using the carrying

amount of such assets and liabifities at bolance sheet dale.

Greater than 3

Demand aed up  Greater than 1 monthup  monéhs up to 12 Greater than 12 mondhs up Greater than Nea-itderest sensitive Non-financial
to 1 month to 3 months meaths te 24 manths 24 montks items instriments Total
2019 - GROUP NS N$ N§ Ns NS N§ NS N$
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 147,586,155 - - - - - - 147,586,155
Financial assels &l amariised cosl - - 13,978,808 - - - - 13,978,808
Other receivables - - - - - 188,179,708 14,229,356 202,409,064
Net advances 4,423,586 2,800,789 53,909,113 159,573,011 2,714,625,650 - - 2,935,341, 149
Cuzrenl laxation - - - - - - 23,825,717 23825717
Property, equipment and right-of~
USE Assels - - - - - - 31,671,627 31,671,627
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 17,825,861 17,825,86]
Tedal nssels 152,009,741 2,809,789 67,887,021 159,573,011 2,714.625,650 188,179,708 $7,552,561 3,372.638.381
Liabilities nnd equity
Deposils due to customers 32,939,965 11,028 10,409,863 - - - - 43,360,856
‘Trade and other payables - - - - 32,617,601 17,670,474 50,288,075
Borowings 5,771,872 - 275,000,000 10,000,000 . . - 290,771,872
Lease liabilities 355,256 742,514 3,580,853 4,555,593 4,972,886 - - 14,207,102
Intercompaony payables - - - - 138,049,450 2,902,058 - 140,951,508
Delerred tax Liabilities - - - - - - 18,959,024 18,959,024
Ordinary shareholders' equity - - - - - - 2,814,099,944 2,814,099.944
‘TotalJiabilities and equity 39,067,093 753,542 288,990,716 14,555,593 143,022,336 35,519,659 2.850,720,442 3,372,628 381
On balarcee sheet interest
sensifivity 112,942,648 2,056,247 (221,102,795) 145,017,418 2,571.603,314 - - -
Greafer than 3
Demand and up  Greater than Imanthup  months up to 12 Greater ihan 12 mondhs up Greater than Nor-interest sensifive Non-financiak
to 1 manthk to 3 months manths te 24 months 24 months items ingtruments Tetal
2018 - GROUP NS NS N3 NS N§ NS NS NS
Assots
Cash and cash equivalenis 750,860,222 - - - - - - 750,860,322
Other receivahles - - - - 128 469,415 2,818,549 131,287,964
Net advances 1,779,651 2,931,232 70,663,140 184,436,795 2,295,810,772 - - 2,555,621,590
Current laxation - - - - - - 22,347,358 22,347,358
Property, equipment and righl-ol-
use assets - - - - - - 9,643,952 9,643,952
Defemed 1ax assels - - - - - - 9713498 9,713,498
‘Total assets 752639973 2,931,232 70,663,140 184,436,795 2,295.810,772 128,469,415 44,523 337 3,479.474,684
Liabilifies and equéty
Deposits due o customers 74,748,898 - - - - - - 74,748,398
Trade and other payables B - - - 38.431,341 12,475,270 50,906,611
Bomowings 12,713,082 - - 275,000,000 53,337,809 - - 341,050,891
inlercompany payables - - - - 120,451,975 2,946,716 - 123,398,691
Delerced tax liabitities - - - - - - 14,015,331 14,015,331
Ordinary shareholdess' equity - - - - - - 2.875,354,262 2,875,354,262
Tedal liabikties and equity 87,461,980 - - 273,000,000 173,189,784 41,373 057 2,501,844 863 3,479,474,684
On balanve sheet interest
seasitivity 665,177,993 2931,232 70,663,140 (90,563,205} 2,122,020,988 - - -
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6,1 Fi iad risk Factors

6.1.2 Markef risk (cortinucid)
6.1.2.1 Interest rate risk managemeat (cantinued)

Interest rate sensitivily analysis (continued}

i) Re-pricing profil ntinued
Grenater flinn 3
Demeand amd up  Greater thae E mesthup  months up to 12 Greater than 12 months up Greater thar Non-intevest sensitive Nar-fnancial
to 1 meath to 3 months enoiths 10 24 snonths 24 maonths items inslruments Totat
2019 - COMPANY NS N§ NE NS N§ NS NS NS
Assets
Cash and cash equivaients 179,513 - - - - - - 199,513
OQther receivables - - - - - 50,211,880 - 50,211,880
Intercampany receivable 15,315,541 - - - - - - 15,315,541
Current taxation - - - - - - 7,204,141 7,204,141
Investment in subsidiari = - - - - - 1,914,353 808 1,914,353,808
Tokad assets 15.495.054 - - - - 50,211,880 1,921.557,949 1,987,264,883
Liabilities and equity
Trade and other payables - - - - - 19,629 275,349 204,978
Ordinary shareholders' equity - - - - - - 1.986,969,905 1,986,969,905
‘Totai Babilities and equity - - - - - 19,629 1,987,245.254 1,987,264,883
Cn balance sheet interest 15,495,654 - - - - - - -
Greater fhan 3
Bensauid and up  Greater than | menthup  mosths up to 12 Greater than 12 monthsup  Greater than Nar-interest i Nor-fi inl
to 1 moxth to 3 monihs moths 0 24 months 24 enonths items instruenerts Fota!
2018 - COMPANY N$ NS N3 NS NS NS NS N$
Assels
Cash and cash equivatents 1,11%,927 - - - - - - 1,115,927
Orher receivables - - - - - 18,203,676 - 13,203,676
intercompany receivable 1,335,673 - - - - - - 1,355,073
Current 1axalion - - - - - - 7,233,463 7,233,463
Investment in subsidiar - - - - - - 1,914,353,808 1,914,353 808
‘Fotat nssets 2,475,000 - - - - 18,202,676 1921587271 1.942,265,947
LinhiEties and equity
Trade and other payables - - - - - 166,117 92,751 258,868
Amounts due to parent company 17,831,609 - - - - - - 17,831,009
Ordinary sharghelders' equily - - - - - - 1,924,1 76,070 1,924, 176,070
‘Fotak liabilities and equity 17,831,009 - - - - 166,117 1924.268,821 1.942.265.947
On balance sheet Enterest (15,356,000 - - - - - - -
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LETSHEGO HOLDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)

for the year eided 335 December 2019

6.k Financial risk factors {esntinued)

6,52 Market visk {continued)

6,121 Isferest rafe risk manapement {continued)

ii} Potentia! effect of chonges in the market interest rale on enmings for floating rale instruments.

Sensitivity analysis based on a 200 basis paint ircrease in inderest rates

“The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure (o interest rates for financial instruments at the statement of financial posilion date. For flenting rate liabililies, the analysis is prepared assuining $he antount of
liability outstanding al statement of financial posilion date was cuistanding for the whole year. A 200 basis point movement far NAD expasures is used when reperling inlerest rate risk intemally mid represents management’s

11
¥p

ol ther

le change in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis betow is based on an increase in rales. Given the struclure of the Group’s porifolio, a 200 basis point increase in interest rales would result in a comesponding increase of NAD 2.1 million in net income

(before tan}.

2019 - GROUP
Financial assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Advances

Financial liabilities

Intercompany paynbles

Net elfect on the of total &

2618 - GROUE
Finaztial assels

Cash and cash equivalenis
Advances
Finnacial linbilities

Intercompany payables

Statement of profit
Carrying amount Amount exposed fo or loss imapact
at end of year mearket 1igk Iasidex to which interest rate is linked {pre-fax)
NS NS N§ NS§
147,586,155 147,586,155 Narnibia Prime 2,951,723
2,935.341.149 - MNFA -
3,082,927304 147,586,155 2,951,723
140,951,508 138,049,450 Namibia Prime (2,760,939
140,951,508 138,049,450 (2,760,989}
income 190,734
Statement of profit
Carrying amount Amount exposed to erloss impret
at end of year market risk Index to which intevest yate is linted {pre-tax)
NS NS Ns N3

750,860,322 750,860,322 Nomibia Prime 15,017,206
2,553.621.390 - NA -
3,306,481,912 750,860,322 15,617,206
123,398,691 120,451,975 Namibio Prime (2,409,040}
123,398,691 120.451,975 (2,409,040}
12,608,166

Net effect on the séatement of todal comprehensive iscome

Carrying amount

Ameunt expesed to

Statement of profit
or loss jrapact

at end of year market risk Tndex to which intercst rate is linked {pre-fax)
2019 - COMPANY NS N5 NS N§
Financial assets
Cosh and cash equivalents 179,513 179,513 Narmibia Prime 3,590
Intercompany Teceivable 35,315,541 - N/A -
15,495,054 179,513 3,590
Financinl llabilities
Frade nnd olher payables 294,578 - NFA -
394,973 . T
Net effect on (he statement of dofat compichensive income 3,500
Statergent of profit
Carrying amount Amonnt exposed to or loss impact
at exxd of year market risk Index to which interest rafe is linked {pre-tax}
2018 - COMPANY NS NS NS N§
Financial assefs
Cash and eash equivalenls 1,119,927 1,119,927 Namzbia Prime 22,399
Intercompany receivable 1,355,073 - NIA -
2,475,000 1,119,927 22,399
Financial lExbilities
Trade and other payables 258,868 - N/A -
258 868 - -
Net effect on the t of tedn) comprefensive incone 22,399
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6.1 Finauciat risk faciors (continued)
6,1.2 hEarket risk (continued)

6,1.2,2 Foreign crescy risk management

Fareign currency risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from adverse movements in foreign cumency exchange rates. Currency 1isk in the Group arises as a result of holding foreign cumency denominated borrowings and foreign
currency in cash.

The Group's primary risk objeclive is to protect ihre nel eamings against the impact of adverse exchanga rate movements. ALC( is nmandated lo manags this risk by applicalion of appropriate [oreign currency derivatives, axpasure
limits aird other appropriale sirategies to ensure adberence to the Group's tisk appelite.

Al present, neither Ihe Group's assets, liabilities nor cash flows are denominated in foreign curency, hence the Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
P! p P p

6,123 Otker price risk mansgentent
‘e Group Bas a low market risk appetite. For this reason, the Group does noi Ty pically trade in any marketable secarities and holds any required marketeble securilies until niaturity and is thercfore s not exposed 1o price risk
associated with these marketable securities,

6.5.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk i§ the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment obligations as they fall dug, These payment oblipations coutd resutt from a mismatch in the timing and/or magritude of cashilows msocisted with assets and
linbititics, depositor withdrawals, lower than expected receipts from cuslomers, higher than expected pay-out 1o customers, higher than expected operational, 1ax or dividend flows, or the inabifity to roll over maluzsing debt.
Another form of liquidity risk is that in a stressed liquidily event, the Group would be unnble to sell assets, wilkoul incurring an unacceptable Loss, in order to generle cash required 1o meet paymeni obligations.

‘The Board of Directors sets the Group™s strtegy Tor monaging liquidily dsk and deleates Tespensibility for oversight of the implermentation of this palicy to ALCO, Managenienl manages the Group's liquidily pesition on a day-to-
day basis and reviews reporis covering the lquidity positicn of the Group. A summary report, including any excepiions and remedial action taken, is submitied regularly fo ALCO. ALCO monitors and controls adherence to the
rigk appelile and regulalory tequirements.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidily is 16 ansure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and siressed canditions, without incurring
unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The key elements of the Group's Hquidity siralegy are as follows:

«  Maintaining & diversificd funding base consisting of customer deposits (both Telail and corporate) and wholesele markel deposils and maintaining contingency facilities.

Carrying a portfolio of highly liquid assets, diversified by currency and maturity.

+  Simulating fulure cash flow projections.

«  Monitoring liquidity ralios, maturity mismalches, behavioural characteristics of the Grotp™s financial assets and financial linbililies, and (he extent to which the Gronp's assels are encurabered and so not available as potential

collateral for obtaining funding.
+  Stress tesling of the Graup’s liquidity position. Liquidily stress testing is conducted under a variely of scenarios covering bath nomual and mors severe markel conditions. The scenarios are developed taking into account both

Giroup-specific events (e.g. arating downgrade) and market-related events (e.g. prolonged nuzket illiquidity).

The following 1nbles analyse the Group's financial assets and liabililies inlo relevant maturity grovpings based on the cemaining period nt the statement of financial position dale Lo the contractual matpdly date. The 1otal ties back
to The balance sheet,

"The matctsing and centralled mismaiching of the maturitics and interest rates of financial assets and liabifilies are fundamental to the manngement of risk within the Group. # is unusual for the Group ever ta be completely matched
since the business Transacled is oflen of uncertain term and of different iypes. An unmaiched position potentially snhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of loss,

The maturilies of financial assets and fiakilities and the ability 10 eplace, ot an accepiable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature, are imporiant faclors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure lo changes in
irtlerest rates.

Assets and liabilifies matarities as 2t 31 December 2019

Greater than 1 Greater than £2
Demand sk up fo 1 meonth up to 3 Greater than 3 monéhs up  mondhs up s 24 Greater than Non-financial assets
maonth months t0 12 mendhs menths 24 menths and liabilities ‘Fatak
2089 - GROUP N$ NS N§ N§ NS NS NS
Assets
Cash and cash equivaients 147,586,155 - - - - - 147,586,155
Finaneial assels al amortised cost - - 13,978,808 - - - 13,578,808
Other receivables - 188,179,708 - - - 14,229,356 202,409,064
Net advances 74,317,050 139,139,862 344,393,048 60,414,331 2,067,076,858 - 2,935,341,149
Cugrent taxation - - - - - 23,825,717 23,825,717
Property, ¢quipment and right-of-
uge assels - - - - - 31670627 31,671,627
Delerred tax assets - - - - - 17,825,861 17,825,861
Total assets 221,903,203 327,319,510 603,371,856 G014 331 2.067.076.858 21,552,561 3.372.638,381
Liabilities and equity
Deposits dus to custorers 32,939,965 11,028 10,409,863 - - - 42,360,236
Trade and other payables 32,617,601 - - - - 57,670,474 50,288,075
Borowings 3,711,872 - 275,000,000 10,000,000 - - 290,771,872
Lease Linbilities 355,256 742,514 3,580,853 4,555,593 472,886 - 14,207,102
Intercompany payables - 2,902,058 - - 138,045,450 - 140,951,508
Deferted tax Jinbility - - - - - 18 459,024 18,959,024
Ordinary shazeholders' equity - - - - - 2,814,099,9494 2.814,099,944
Tatak liabilities and eqaity 71,684,694 3655600 288.990.716 14,555,593 143,022,336 2.850,725142 3372,63833]
Netliguidity gap §50218,511 323,663,970 319,381,140 45,858,738 1,924,054,522 - -
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6,1 FinanciM risk Factors (continued)

6.1.2 Liquédity risk (continued)

Assels ard linbilities maturities as at 31 December 2019 {centinued)

2018 - GROUP
Assels

Cash and cash equivalenls
(rber receivables

Met advances

Currenl taxation

Properly, equipment and righl-of-

ise assels
Deferred tax assets

Fotal assefs

Liabitities and equity
Dieposits due to customers
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Intercompany gayables
Deferred tax liability

Ordinary shareholders' equity
‘Fotak lisbilitics asd cquity

Net liguidity gap

2019 « COMPANY

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Otber rgceivables
Intercompany receivable
Current taxation
Investment in subsidiaries
‘Fotak assets

Liakiities and equity

Trade and other payables
Ordinary shareholders equity
TFotal linbilities andd equity

On balance sheet interest

2018 - COMPANY

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Inlercompany receivable
Current (axation
Invesiment in subsidiaries
Total rssels

Linbitities and cquity

Trade and other payables
Amounts due 1o parent company
Ordinary shareholders’ equily
Tetal linkilities and equidy

On badance sheet interest

Demand acd up to I

Greater than 1
monthup te 3

Greater than 3 months up

Greater than 12
menths up fo 24

Greater than

Nan-financial assets

wianth resontkss to 12 months months 24 mondhs and Jiabilities Toial
N§ N$ NS NS NS$ N§ N$
750,860,322 - - - - - 750,860,322
- 131,282,964 - - - - 131,287,964
69,867,116 135,455,320 574,667,859 69,404,522 1,706,226,773 - 2,555,621,590
- - - - - 22,347,358 22,347,358
- - - - - 9,643,952 9,643,552
- - - - - 9713498 9,713,458
820,727,438 266,743,284 574,667,859 69,404,522 1,706,226,773 41,704,808 3.479.474,684
T, 148,898 - - - - - 7d, 748,898
38431,341 - - - - 12,475,270 50,906,611
12,713,082 B - 275,000,000 53,337,809 - 341,050,891
- 2,946,716 - - 120,451,975 - 123,398,691
- - - - - 14,015,331 14,015,331
- - - - - 2,875.354.262 2375354262
125,893,321 2,946,716 - 275,000,000 173,789,784 2,901.844.863 3,479,474,684
694 834 117 263,796,568 574 667,859 (205,595,478) 1,532,436,989 - -
Greater than I Greater (haey 12
Demand and up to 1 nopthupto 3 Greater fhan 3 monéhs up  months up to 24 Greater than Nea-lEnancind assets
month manths to 12 manths monhs 24 rmanths #nd iabikities Tetal
N§ NS NS NS NS NS NS
179,513 - - - - - 179,513
- 50,211,880 - - - - 50,211,880
15,315,541 - - - - - 15,315,541
- - - - - 7,204,141 7,204,141
- - - - - 1,914,353,808 1,914,353 808
15,495,054 50,211,880 - - - 1,921,557,949 1,987,264,883
15,629 - - - - 215,349 294,978
- = - - - 1,986,969.905 1,986,969,905
19,629 - - - - 1,987,245,254 1,987,264,883
35475,425 50,211,880 - - - - -
Grenter ban 1 Greater than 12
Deamnnd and up to 1 monthuap to 3 Greater (han 3 meonths up  menths up to 24 Greater than Non-firaecial assets
maontk ntenths {0 12 manths months 24 mowdhs nnd liabiligies Total
N§ NS NS§ N§ N$ NS NS
1,519,927 - - - - - 1,119,927
- 18,203,676 - - - - 18,203,676
1,335,073 - - - - - 1,355,073
- - - - - 7,233,463 7,233,463
- - - - - 1914.333,808 1,914,353 808
2475000 18,203.676 - - - 1921,587.271 1,942,265.947
166,117 - - - - 92,751 258,868
17,831,009 - - - - - 17,831,009
- - - = - 1,924,176,070 1,924,176,070
17,097,126 - - - - 1,924 268821 1,942,265.947
{15,532.126Y 18,203,676 - - - - -




LETSHEGO HOLBDINGS (NAMIBIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POEACIES (CONTINUED)
fox the yenr ended 31 Decemtber 201%

6.1 Financial risk factors {continued)

61,3 Liguidity visk (continued})

The following table represents The Group’s undiscounted cash ffows of liabilities per remaining maturity and includes all cash llaws related ta the principal amounts as wetl as fulure payments. The analysis is based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required lo pay and is nol aecessmily the date at which the Group is expecled 1o pay.

Greater than 1

Ghreater han 5

Cmrying monthup to & Greater than 6 meonths up  Greaterthanl  Greater than 2 yesrs up to
2019 - GROUP amaoxnt Up to 1 neoniks maonths {0 12 months yearup te 2 yems 5 years years Tatal
Financigt Liabilities NS N$ N$ NS NS NS NS
Lease linbilities 14,207,102 497,327 2,552,022 3,084,493 556,783 5,660,152 - 17,258,777
Borrowings 290,771,872 1,965,000 14,340,000 289,667,500 10,982,500 - N 316,955 000
Intercompany payables 140,951,308 1,438,015 10,092,134 8,628.091 17,256,181 155,303,631 - 192,720052
445 930482 3,900,342 26,084,156 301,280,084 33,695,464 160,965,783 - 526925828
Greater than 1
Carrying menth 1y to 6 Grenter than 6 months up Greater ikan 1 Greater than 2 yenrsup to Gueater than 5
2018 - GROUP amount Up to 1 month morths to 12 months year up to 2 years Syears years Total
Financial liabifities NS N§ NS N§ NS N§ NS
Romowings 341,050,891 17,294,163 21,785,613 26,402,585 376,154,210 231,390,004 - 623,026,375
Ir pony payabl 123,368,601 1,243,273 9,163,082 7.459,639 14.949.279 176,544,799 - 209,330,072
464,449,582 18,537,430 30,948,645 33,862,224 341,073,489 407,934,803 - 832,356,647
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6.1 Financinl risk factors (cenfinued}

6,14 Assets snd linbidities mensured at far value or for whiich Eair values are disclosed
6.54.1 Vnluation models
The fair value of financial sssets and fnancia! liabilities thal are traded in active markels are hased on quoted markel prices or dealer price quolalions. For all other financial instruments, the group determines Fir values using other
valualion lechniques.
"The Group measures fair valug using the following fair value hierazchy, which reflects the significance of the inpuls used in making the measuraments.
+ Level | fair volue measurements nre ihose derived from quoted market prices {unadjusted) in active markels for identical assels or liabilities,
»  Level 2 air value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilily, either directly {i.¢. as prices) ot indireclly (i.e. derived from
prices).
«  Level 3 fair vatue measurements are those derived from valualion techniques thal include inputs for the asset or lisbilily thal are not based on obszrvable market data {uncbservable inputs).
Vatuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar instrunsenls for which market observable prices exist and other valuation modefs. Assuniplions and inputs vsed in
valuation technigues include risk free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other factors vsed in estimaling discounting rates, foreign currency exchange rates, bond and equity prices, equily and equily index prices and
expected price volatilities and comrelations.
The ohjective of valuation techniques is to arive at a fuir value measurement that reftects the price that would be received Lo seli he asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants al the

measurement date.

Fair valtg for disclostre

For instrumenis measured and preseated al amortised cost, in delermining the fuir value for disclosure purposes, the Group uses its own valuation models, which are usuaily developed fron: recognised valuaiion models. Some or
all of the significant inpuls into these models may not be observable in the markei, and are derived [ron: market prices o rates or are estimated based on assumptions. Examples ol instruments involving significant unobservable
inpuls inciude advances and ceriain funding loans for which there is no active markel. Valuation models thal employ significant unobservable inpuls require o higher degree of management judgenient and estimaiion in the
determination of fair value, Manngement judgement and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valyation model to be used, delermination of expecled fsture cash flows on the Ginancial instrument being
valued, determination of the probability of counterparty defal and selection of appropriale discount rate.

Faiz value estimates obtained from madels include adiusiments Lo (ake account of the credit risk of the Group end the counterparty where appropriate.

General

Model inputs and values are calibrated apainst historical data and published fi and, where possible, against current or recent observed transactions and experiences. This calibralion pracess is inherently subjective and i1
A P ag P

vields ranges of possible inpuls and estimates of fair volues, and jud il is ired 1o selecl ie most sppropriate peint in the range.

3 P J 1! P

Level 3 foir value disclosure — Advances
The fair value of the tdvances book has been derived using a discounied cash flow technique. The Group has modelied the expected future cash flows by exirapolating the most recent abserved cash flows on the advances book.

Amortised cost and fair value are both based upon present value of fulure cash flow techni however the following significant differences exist between the impni mient (amortised cost) and fair value metiiodologies:

« Fair value includes all expected cash flows, whereas inspainuents uncler IAS 39 are liraited to incurred loss evenis;

« The impairntent eash fows are not reduced by the et insurance premiums the Group expects (o pay across (o insurance praviders;

« The impainnent cash flows ars not reduced by ¢xpacted cost of collection.

Amorised cost requires the Future cash Dows 1o be discounted at the advance's effective interest rate wherens the [air value methadology discounts the expected cash flows at a required rate of retumn.

6.1.42 Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed®

Level 1 Level 2 Levetd ‘Tedal Canying ameant
2019 - GROUFP N$ NS N§ NS N3
Financinl assets
Net advances - - 3,059,917.661 3,059.917,661 2.035,341,149
Tatal - - 3,059.917,661 3,039.217.661 2,935,341.149
Finascial liabilitées
Bomowings - - 290,771,872 290,771,872 200,771,872
Intescompany paysbles - - 140,951,508 140,951,508 140,951,508
Total - - 431,723,380 431,723,380 431,723,380
Level 1 Levei2 Level 3 Totak Carrying amount
2018 - GROUP NS NE NS N3 N$
Financint nssels
Nel pdvanees - - 2,569.751.842 2,560,751 842 2,533,621.590
Totak - - 2,56%,751,842 2,569,751,842 2.555,621,590
Finnneiad Exbilities
Bormowings - - 344,050,891 341,050,891 341,050,801
Intercompany payables - - 123,398,691 123,398,691 123,398,651
Total - - 464,449,582 464,449,582 464,449,582

*The following items' fair value is not disclosed us these assels and liabilitics closely approximate their camying amount due to their short tenn or on demand repayment lerms:
-~ Cash and cash equivatenls;

- Accounis receivables and other assels;

- Deposits due to cuslomers

- Creditors and accruals

~ Intercompany receivable

The Iair value of the net advances is based on the expected fulure cash Nows, discounted using markel related rales.
The fair value of the iniercompany payables is based on the expected Future cash flows, discounted using variable prime overdrall rale plus 2%.
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6.1 Fi ial visk factors (conti dy

6.1.5 Annfysis of financin] assets and Eabilitics
Financial sssels and Gnancial liabilities are measured either at fair vatue or at amontised eost. The principal accounting policies describe how the ¢lass of financial instruments are messured and how jrcome and expenses, including
fair value pains and losses, are recognised.
The following Tables analyses the financial assels and financial liabilities in the balance sheet per class and category of financial instrument 16 which ihey are assigned. An estimate of he Fair value per ctass of the financial
instrumiens is also provided.

Greater than
Amertised cost Total Up to [2 meonths 12 maonths
2019 - GROUP NS N§ N$ N3
Tinancial assels
Cash and ensh equivalents 147,586,155 147,586,155 147,586,155 -
Financial assets al amortised cost 13,978,808 13,978,808 13,978,808 -
Other receivables 188,179,708 188,179,708 188,179,708 -
Net advances 2,935.341,149 2935341 149 61,142,488 2,874.393.661
Total financinl assets 3,285,085,820 3,283,085,820 410,837,159 2,874,198,661
Financial linbilities
Deposits die to customers 43,360,856 43,360,856 43,360,856 -
Trade and other payables 32,617,600 32,617,601 32,617,601 -
Bomawings 290,771,872 290,771,872 280,771,872 10,800,000
Lease lishilitics 14,207,102 14,207,102 4,678,603 9,528,479
Inlercompany payables 140,951,508 140,951,508 2,902,058 138 049 450
Total financinl Habitities 521,908 939 521,508,939 364,331,010 157,577,929
Greater than
Amortised cosé Fotal Up to 12 months 12 months
2018 - GROUP NS NS N§ NS$
Financiat assets
Cash and cash equivalents 750,860,322 750,860,322 750,860,322 -
Dther receivables 131,287,964 131,287,964 131,287,964 -
Net advances 2.555,621.590 2,555,621.590 75,374,623 24380,247 567
Fotal {inancial asseds 3437, 764870 3,437,769876 957,522,300 2,480,247 567
Financial Habitities
Deposits dug to custoniers 74,748,898 74,748,898 74,748,898 -
Trade and other payables 38,431,341 38,431,341 38,431,341 -
Borrowings 341,650,891 341,050,891 12,713,082 328,337,809
Intercompany payables 123,398,691 123,398,691 2946716 120,451,975
Totsl fimaecial liabilities 577,629,821 377,629,821 128,840,037 448,789,784
Greater than
Amortised cost Tatal Up ta 12 months 12 months :
2019 - COMPANY his N$ NS N§ B
Financinl nssets
Other receivables 50,211,880 50,211,880 50,211,880 -
Intercanipany receivable 15,315,541 15315,541 15,315,541 -
Tetal inancial sssets 65,527421 55,527,421 65,527421 -
Finaucial linbilities
Trade and other payables 294,978 294,978 294,978 -
Borrowings - - - -
inlercompany payables - - - -
Total Bnanciat linbitities 294 978 204 978 294 978 -
Greater than
Amaerlised cost Total Up to 12 meoaths 12 months
2018 - COMPANY N$ N NS N§
Financiat assets
Other receivables 18,203,676 18,203,676 18,203,676 -
Intercompany receivable 1,355,073 1,355,073 1,355.073 -
‘Total finarcial assets 19,558,749 19,558,749 19,558,749 -
Financial linbklities
T'rade and other payables 258,868 258,868 258,868 -
Bemowings - - - -
Inlercompany payables 17,831,009 17,831,009 17,831,008 -
Total fingnciad Hiabilities 18,089,877 18,039,877 18,089,877 -
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6.1 Financiat iisk factors (confinued)

4.1.6 Capital mansgement
Capital adequacy risk is the risk that the Group will not have suflicient reserves 1o meei malerially ndverse markei condilions beyond that which has already been nssumed within the impaiment provisions and reserves.

The Group strives to maintain a slrong capital base. Managed capital comprises of shive capilal, conamon control reserve, share based payment reserve ond relained eamings. The Group's objectives when managing capital are 1o
safeguard the company's ebility to continue as a going concer in order to provide retums for shareholders and benefils for other stakeholders and 1o mainiain an optimal cepilal structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The Group's stralegic focus is 1o maintain an optinzal mix of available Gnanciat resources, whiles conlinuing to generate sulficient caplial lo support the grawih of the Group’s operations ndlhin the parameters of the risk appetite sel
by ihe Board. It is the Group's ebjective to safeguard the compuny's ability (o conlinue os a going concem in erder 10 provide relurns for shareholders and benefils for other stakeholders and to mainlain an eptimal capilal struclure
1o reduce the cost ol capilal.

In order to maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shargholders, issue new shares or sell assets 1o reduce debt.

External regulatory capital management - Banking Opetaiions
Regulatory capilal adequacy is measured by expressing avaitable qualifying capital as a percentags of risk-weighted assets. The Banking Instilutions Act {No 2 of 1998) and supporting regulations, read togelher with specific
requirements fer the banking opesations, specify ths mintmurn capital required (o be held in relation 1o 7isk weighled assets. Ancillary regatory requirements include the Basel [ leverage ratio.

The banking aperations regulatory eapital is divided into two liers:

- Tier | capital: Share capital, share premiun, irred ble pref: shares, share based payiment Teserve, relnined eamings and Tessrves created by appropriations of relained eamings.
- Tier 2 capital: qualifying subordinated loan capital and general loan loss provisions.

The Bank of Namibia requires each bank or banking group to maintein the following eapitel ndequacy ralios:

- Tier 1 capital 1o total assels, al a inimum of 6%, referred 10 as the leverage capital ratio;

- Tier | capital lo the risk-weighted assets al the minimum of 7%, referred to as Tier | risk-based capital ralio; and

- The total regilatory capital to risk-weighted assets as o minimum of 10%, refemred to as total risk-based capital mtio.

Tn addition to the zbove mirimum <apital requirements, the Bank of Mamibia requires the bank 10 perform an intemal capital adequacy and assessmenl process (FCAAF} in terms of Piliar 11 of Basel 11, which has been documented
and approved by the board. The process resulls in:

- The identification of all significant risk exposures to the banking proup;

- The guantification ol sk appetites for the major risks identified; and

- Control mensures Lo mitigate the major risks,

ALCO is mandated to monitor and manage capilal, which includes:

- meeling mininmm Basel I reguiatory Tequirements and additionat capiial add-ons and floors as specified by the Bank of Namibia ("Boh™);

- ensure adequate capital buffers above the aibrementioned eriteria 1o ensure sustainability in both a systemic and idiosyneralic stress event as set out by the Group's risk nppetite;

- test the Group's strategy against risk appetite and required capital levels;

- on an annua! basis (o review and sign-off the Group’s Iatemal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process, prior to the submission to the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board and BoN; and
- to ensure compliance with other prudential regulatory sequirements in respect ol non-banking entities within the Group, most notably the capital requirements of these ron-banking entilies.
The debt covenant requirements attached to the Group's borrowings in nole 15 are:

- DBad Debis Ratio does not exceed 10%

- Cash Coliection Ratio exceeds 35%

- Capitalisalion ratio exceeds 30%

The Group kas complied with these covenants throughout the reporling period.

HKegulatory capital

GROUP BANK
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2012 31 December 2018
NS NS NS NS

Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share and premium 100,000 100,000 59,624,010 59,624,010
Iredeeniable preference share capital 215,084,843 215,084,843 215,084,843 215,084,843
Retained camings 1,430,488,761 1,162,814,840 640,268,544 580,425,501
Ordinary shargholdess' reserves 763,168,177 T02.096 416 2,326,724 3,254,963
‘Tatal ter 1 capitat 2,348.841,781 2,030,096.099 917,304,126 #36,389,317
Tier 2 eapitul
Redeemable preference share capital 465,258,163 795,258,163 - -
General allowance for credit impaiments 21,051,332 7332082 13,929,276 1,410,026

486,309,495 802,590,245 13,929,276 1,410,026
Total gualifying capital 2,835,151,276 2,882 686,344 931,233 402 857,799,343
Risk-weighted assets
Cradit risk 2,364,763,235 2,262,988,022 1,113,423,602 536,083,909
Market risk - - - -
Operational risk 81,864,958 648,173,403 103,955,584 168,227,419
Toinl risk-weighted assefs 2448,628,193 2,911,161.425 1,217,379,180 704,311,328
Capital adequacy ratias

Minimum regulatory
requi E 1 Bt 31 December 2619 31 Decermber 2018
% %o % %

GROUP
Tolal capital adeqacy ratic 10 15 116 99
Tier | capital adequacy ratio 7 9 96 T
Tier ! leverage ralio ] B [ 39
BANK
Total capital adeqacy ralio 10 15 %6 122
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 7 & 5 122
Tier 1 leverage ratio 6 8 54 90
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Group Company
3% December 31 December 31 December 31 Deceraber
2012 2018 2049 2018
Ng N§ N§ N§
7. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and batances with banks 71,953,268 427,312,769 179,513 1,119,927
Money market placements 21,524,165 254,672,982 - -
Balances with the central bank other than mandatory reserve deposits 47,538,370 8,725,655 - -
Ineluded in cash and cash equivalents 147,015,743 750,71 ,406 179,513 5,119,927
Mandatory reserve deposits with the central bank 570,412 148,916 - -
147,586,155 750,860,322 179,513 1,119,927

Money market placeménts constitute nmounts held in money market unit trust with extemal financial institutions on a short-term basis. These placements ase highly liquid, readily convertibie and have

an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the period-eud cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Back balances £42,124,68% 750,214,394 79,513 1,119,927
Cash on hand 3,461,474 45,928 - -
847,586,155 750,860,322 179,513 1,119,927

e to the short term nature of cash and cash eqaivalents as well as historical experience, these balances measured at amoriised cost are regarded as hiaving a low probability of default and the ECL in

respect of these is considered immaterial,
At period-end, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values due to the short-terin maturities of these asseis. There are no restrictiens or pledges on cash and cash

equivalents as at the reporting date,

8.  Financial assets at amortised cost

Treasusy bills 13,980,203 - - -
Gross financiaf assets at amortised cost 13,989,205 - - -
Less expected credit loss allowance {1,397) - - -
Net financial assets at amortised cost 13,978,808 - - -
Cusrent 13,980,205 - - -
Non-current - - - -
Gross financial assets a1 amortised cost 13,980,205 - - -

Due to the short term nature of these financial assets at amortised cost as well as historical experience, these assets measured at amertised cost are regarded as having a low probability of default and

the ECL in respect of these is considered immaterial.

9, Receivables

9.1 Other receivables
Finaneial

- Profit share receivable from cell captive 132,766,744 117,148,723 50,854,677 18,167,593
- Deposits 8,587,899 1,383,25% 57,803 36,083
- Sundry receivables 46,825,045 1,591,080 - -
MNon-financial
- Deferred fees 6,829,682 8,346,353
- Prepayments 7,399,674 2,818,549 - -
202,409,064 131,287,964 50,211,884 18,203,676

At year end, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate closely to their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these assets,
Due to the short term nature of otlier receivables as well as histosical experience, these assets measared at ansortised cost are regarded as having a low probability of default and the ECL in sespect of

these is congidered immaterial.

9.2 Intercompany receivable
Financial

- Intercampany current account - Letshego Micro Financial Services (Namibia) Ltd

- Tntercompany cizrent account - Letshego Bank (Namibiz) Ltd

. - 1,315,541 1,355,073
R - 14,000,000 -
N . 15,315,541 1,355,073

The above intercompasy receivables are unsecured and currently bear no interest. These ioans are of a short-term nature and have no fixed repayment terms.

Due to historical experience intercompany receivables measured at amortised cost are regarded as & low probability of default and the ECL in respect of these is condidered jmmaterial.
At recognition and at yeer end, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable approxinate closely to their fair values due to the short-term maturitics of these assets.
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18, Advances to custonters
Gross advances to customers
Less: Impairment allowance on advances

Net advances o customers

Ympnirment allowance on advances

Balance at the beginning of the period

IFR59 remeasurement adjustment 1o opening balance
Lnpairment adjustinent - inerease/{decrease) for the period

Balance at the end of the period

The balance at the end of the period consists of the foliowing:
Stage 1 itnpaisment
Stage 2 - 3 impainnent

(Reversals)/Charges in the profit or foss
Amourts written off
Recoveries during the period

Exposure to credit risk
Net advances to customers
Maximum exposure to credii risk

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Deceiber
2019 2018 2018 2018
NS N§ N3 N§
2,963,419,051 2,571,754,366 - -
(28,077,902) (22,132,776) - -

2,935,341,149

2,555,621,590

22,132,776 13,063,342 - -
. (3,953,526) - -
5,945,126 13,023,260 - -
28,077,902 23,132,776 - -
21,051,332 7,332,082 - .
7,026,570 14,800,694 - -
28,077,902 22,132,176 - -
165,672,497 104,209,007 - -
(96,436,883) (86,073,334) - -
9,335,614 18,225,673 B -

2,935,348,14%

2,555,621,590

2,935,341,149

2,355,621,590

Refer to note 6.1.1 for more information on credit risk managemend, czedit quality, credit concentration risk and sensitivity of assumptions and estiates.
The Group performed a detailed assessment of the provision of the impairment allowance during the year. Actisal historic write-off losses and wider credit risk associated with lending to public sector

employees were considered and the credit impaisment adjusted accordingly.

11. Property, equipment and right-of-use assets

Furniture and Gifice Compater Motor Leasehold Right-of-use
fittings equipment equipment vehickes  Emprovements assets - Buildings Tatal
NS N§ N$ N§ NS N% N$

GROUP
At 3% December 2019
Cost 5,085,202 6,391,175 33,629,404 482,298 4,136,017 17,767,826 67,491,922
Accumulated depreciation (3,882,173) (4,779,338) (19,620,274) {333,327) (2,601,750 (4,603,433) (35,820,295)
Carrying amount 1,203,029 1,611,837 14,009,130 148,971 1,534,267 13,164,393 31,671,627
At 31 December 2019
Opening net amount at 1 January 201% 746,919 1,775,239 5,690,087 269,545 1,162,152 - 4,643,952
IFRS 16 initial adoption adjustment - - - - - 13,921,337 13,921,337
Restated net opening ameunt 746,929 1,775,238 5,690,087 269,545 1,162,152 13,921,337 23,565,289
Additions 926,004 92%,774 14,194,072 - 1,074,170 3,846,489 20,962,509
Depreciation clarge (469,904) {(1,085,176) (5,875,029} (120,574) (702,055) (4,603,433) (12,856,171)
Carrying amount 1,203,029 1,614,837 14,009,130 148,971 1,534,267 13,164,393 31,675,627
At 31 December 2018
Cost 4,159,198  5469,40% 19,435,332 482,208 3,061,847 - 32,608,076
Accuntulated depreciation (3,412,269) (3,694,162) {13,745,245) (212,153) (1,899,695) - (22,964,124)
Carrying amouni 746,929 1,775,239 5,690,087 269,545 1,162,152 - 9,643,952
A4 31 December 2018
Opening net anzount at 1 January 2018 1,251,421 2,439,062 5,733,868 390,120 1,289,316 - 11,303,787
Additions 311,904 357,561 3,165,284 - 446,988 - 4,281,737
Disposals - (23,016) {666,257) - - - (689,272}
Depreciation charge {816,396)  {998,369) (2,542,808) (120,575) {574,152) - {5,052,300)
Carrying amount 746,928 1,775,238 5,690,087 269,545 1,162,152 - 9,643,952

COMPANY

The compay docs aot carry preperty, equipment and right-of-use assets.
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12, Trade and other payables

Finangial

- Trade payables

- Accruals

- Other payables

- Dividend payable
Non-financial

- Audit fee provision

- Personnel related

~ Value Added Taxation

~ Withholding Tax

3. Lease liabilities

d in the of fi ial position

Current lease liabilities
Nor-current lease liabilities

Reconelliction of lease Kabilities

Opening balance

IFRS 16 inftial adoption adjustment
Additions/modification

Interest expense

Payments

Closing balance

There were additions of N$3,846,489 to right-of-use assets during the 2019 Enancial year,

oenised i .
8 in the of comp ¢ income

T

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets - Buildings
Interest expense on lease liabilities

14, Taxation

14.1  Income tax expense
Current fax expense
Deferred tax (income)/expense :
- Origination and reversal of temparary differences

‘Tatal Income tax expense

142  MRecencilintion of curvent faxatioa
Profit before taxation

Tax calcutated at standard rate - 32%

Income not subject to tax - dividends
Non-deductible expenses

Effective tax rafe

143  Deferved taxntion

Group Company
31 December 31 Deceinber 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
NS N$ N§ N§
25,377,298 35,346,193 16,441 24,319
4,902,724 2,542,518 - -
2,337,579 542,630 3,188 105,798
- 36,000 - 36,000
,£50,000 393,055 275,349 92,751
12,370,622 9,588,214 - -
3,724,375 1,114,360 . -
425477 1,343,641 v -
59,288,075 506,566,611 294,978 258,868
4,678,623 - - -
9,528,472 - - -
14,207,102 - - -
13,921,337 - - -
3,346,489 . . .
1,601,772 . . R
(5,162,496} - " .
14,207,102 - - -
4,603,433 - - -
1,668,772 - - -
5,705,305 = = -
149,666,066 158,660,926 12,358,075 4,465,952
(3,168,679) 849,144 - -
146,497,396 159,510,070 12,358,075 4,465,952
597,603,235 628,382,081 192,651,910 36,098,711
19,233,035 201,082,458 6,648,611 11,551,588
{46,518,987) (43,795,650) 49,927,523) (7,638,477
1,783,348 2,223,302 636,987 552,841
146,427,396 139,516,070 12,358,075 4,463,952
24.51% 25.38% 6.41% 12.37%

Tha net of the Group's deferred tax assets and lizbilities was praviously presented under a single line item. During the year, the Group has disclosed the deferred tax assels and the deferred tax liabilities separataly.

Deferred tax assels
The balance comprises:
- Provisions
- Share based payments
- Income received in advance

Deferred iax assels reconciliation

Deferred 1ax assets balance at the beginning of the year

Originaiing temporary difterences for the year - Provisions

Originating temporary differences for the year - Share based paymenls
Originating temporary differences for the year - Income received in advance
Deferred tax assets balance at the end of the year

Deferred tax asseis balance
= Cutrent
- Noti-current

15,289,901 8,374,053 - -
686,073 401,588 . -
1,849,387 937,857 - -
17,825,861 9,713,458 - B
9,713,498 6055 509 - -
6,915,348 3007 623 - -
284,485 (287491} - -
9£2,030 937 857 - -
17,825,861 5.713,498 - B
ihi
8,647,683 5,279,200 - -
9,178,178 4 434 208 - -
17,825,861 9713498 p ;
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Group Company
31 December 31 Drecember 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2a1e 2018
NS N§ N$ N§
$4.3  Deferred taxation (contineed)
Dreferved {nx liabilities
The balance comprises:
- Propetty, equipment and right-of-use assets {6,191,526) (1,367.474) - -
- Prep 1s and deferred exp {3,243,648) (3,058,274) - -
- EIR adjustment {9,523,850) (9 589 583) - -
(18,959,024) (14.015331) N :
Deferred tax liabilities reconcifiation
Deferred tax liabilities balance st the beginning of the year (14,015,331) {9,508,198) - -
Originating temporary differences for the year - Properly, equipment and right-of-usg assets (4,824,052) (75,150) - -
Orginating termporary differences for the year - Prepayments and deferred expenses {185,374) (2,649,988) - -
Originating tetporary differences for the year - EIR adjustment 65,733 (1,781,995} - -
Deferred tax liabilities balance al the end of the year {18,930,024) (14,015,331) - -
Deferred tax fiabilities balance
- Current {6,296,645) {4,547,035) - -
- Non-curent {£2,662,379) {9 468 266) - -
(18,959,024) (14,015,331) - -

Deferred income taxes for ihe Cormpany and Group are calculated on all the temporary timing differences under the comprehensive telhod using a tax rate of 32% (2018: 32%) except where the inilial recognition
exemplion applies. The profil or loss debils/eredits are the result of timing differences between the accounting and tax {reatments of ikems recognised in the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the sxtent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be ulilised. A deferred tax asset is recogrised based on the assumption

that the company will continue producing a taxeble income in the foreseeable future against which it can be set off.

144 Current éaxation

Opening balance (22,347,358) (15,086,702} (7,233,463 (7,233,463)

Chasge 1o profil or loss 149,666,066 158,660,926 12,358,075 4,465,952

Paymenls made during the period (151,844,425) (165,921,582) (12,328,753) {4.463,952)

Taxation (assetMliability (23,825.717) (22,347,358) (7,204,141) (7,233 463)
1s. Borrowings

First Mational Dank of Namibia Loan 1 - 12,713,082 - -

$irst National Bank of Namibia Loan 2 65,771,872 103,337,809 - -

Loan 1 from First National Bank of Namibia is guaranteed by Letshego Holdings Limited and bears interest nl Namibia prime less 0.3%. The lean is repayable in quarterly instalments and matures on 31 January

2019,

Loan 2 fiom First National Bank of Namibia is unsecured and bears interest at Nanibia prime plus 2.6%. The loan is repayable in quarterly i

Standard Bank Manubia Limited Loan 225,000,000

225,000,000

and matures on 28 June 2021,

‘The foan from Standard Bank Namibia Limited is guaranteed by Letshego Holdings Linsited and bears interest at 3 month JIBAR plus 4%, Interest on the lpan is repayable quarterly and the loan matures on 31

December 2020,

Total bevrowings 250,775,872 341,050,891 - -

- Current 280,771,872 12,713,082 - -

- Noa-current 10,000,000 328,337,309 - -
299,771,872 341,050,891 - -
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15.

16.1

18.

162

163

Group Company
31 Decenther 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2049 Z018
N§ N§ NS N§
Intercompany payabies
Amounts due to parent company - Letshege Holdings Limited 138,049,450 120,451 875 - -

The loan from Letshega Holdings Limited is unsceured and interest is calculated monthly in arcears at a variable rate of Namibia prime plus 2%. The loan s repayable in variable instalmenis and matures an 30
Nowvember 2024.

Intezcompany payabes (continued)

Tntercompany payable - Exf 8585 (Pty) Ltd 2,962,658 2,946,716 - -

The intercompany loan with Erf 8585 {Pty) £td is unsecured and currently does oot bear interest and has no fixed repayment terms. At year end, the carrying amount of the intercompany payable approximates
closely ta its fair value due to the short-term nature of the balance.

Intercommpany payable - Letshego Bank (Namibia) Ltd - - - 17,831,009

The intercompany payable Letshego Bank (Namibia) Lid is unsecured, of & short-term nature and curcently does not bear interest and has no fixed repayment terms. At year end, the carrying amount of the
intercompany payeble approximates closely to its fair value due to the shori-term nature of the balance.

[otsl intercompany payables 140,951,508 123,398,691 - 17,831,009

Banking fucilities

There were no overdrafl facilities in place at the end of the Bnancial period, (2018: N§ Nil).

Deposits due ta castomers

Current accoums 32,824,067 3,420,830 - -
‘Term deposits 10,536,789 71,328,068 - -
Total deposits due to custonsers 43,560,856 74,748,898 - -

Share capitat
Auihorised share capital
500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,02 cenls each (2018: 500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.02 cenls each) 100,900 100,000 100,000 100,000

Issued share capital
500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.02 cents each (2018: 500 800 000 ordinary shares of 0.02 cents each} 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Equity setiled slnre based payment reserve

Under the conditional Long Term Incentive Plan (L'TIP), conditional share awards are granted 1o management and key employees. The number of vesting share awards {currently outstanding) is subject 1o certain
non-market conditions. Shares are issued and setiled in the holding company, Letshego Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange. The fair value of the shares is valued according to the
listed price on the Botswana Stock Exchange at grant date. Letshego Holdings Limited is liable to fulfil the obligation to the employees on the awards granted.

Shares granted in terms of the plan may not exceed 10% of the issued ordinary shares of the holding company, Leishego ¥oldings Limited. The maximum number of shares which ran be allocated to any individual
pasticipant under the scheme is 1% of the issued ordinary shares of the holding company.

“The alfocation of share awards vnder the plan relating to management of Letshego Bank (Namibia) Linited was made on 1 February 2013, 2014 and December 2014 respectively, The vesting period of the share
awards from grant date is three periods,

Company Group
December December Decenber December
2059 2018 2019 018
Number of  Nuniber of Number of share Exercise price  Number of share awards Exercise price

share awards _share awards awards
Granted during prior periods - - 2,818,689 3.20./2.713/2.42 1,878,000 NAD 3.06/3.20./2.73
Granted in current period - - 1,670,798 NAD 2.24 868,200 NAD 2.42
Exercised during the period - NAD 3.40 (274,784) NAD 3.06
Forfeited during the pedod - - (596,299} NAD 3.25 (292, 117) NAD 3.06
Exercisable and outstanding at the end of the period - - 2,653,100 3.40./2.90/2.56 2,178,699 NAD 3.20/2.73/2.42
Tair value of awards exercisable and outstanding at the end of the
period - - 2,143,979 1,072,218
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21,
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Greup Company
31 December 31 Decentber 3E December 31 December
2019 2018 2089 2018
NS N§ NS NS

Ivefit kefere taxation
The following items have been recopnised in arriving at profit before taxation:

Advertising and promotions 847,769 3,626,752 312,431 334,409
Auditors' remuneration 2,368,592 F75,600 498,150 $6,000

- Audit services 2,368,592 | 779,000 | k 498,150 | I 86,000
- Other services - - - -

Consullancy costs - professianal services 7,568,795 £,454,680 854,431 1,103,183
Compuler services cosis 2,294,697 3,138,708 - -
Depreciation 12,856,E7F 5,052,300 - -
Directors' emoluments

- for services as director 1,822,427 1,540,843 - -

- far management services 2,816,127 2,650,665 - -
Rental - premises, computer and office equipment - 5,976,822 - -
Rental - low valus and short-term feases 2,358,431 - - -
Employee benefil expense 61,075,959 46,612,759 40,324 60,735
Emnployee benefit expense
Salaries 37,047,295 25,426,146 40,324 50,739
Key management personiel 9,755,348 9,029,118 - -
Pension fund conwibutions 4,263,137 3,255,916 - -
Medical aid contributions 2,584,899 1,718,713 - -
Sacial security 144,972 122,306 - -
Incentive bosuses 10,070,503 9,691,195 - -
Staff training and welfare 22962 20,030 - -

63,889,116 49,263,424 40,324 60,739

Operating expenses by nature
Sales related expense 10,048,315 3,842,383 31,631 334,408
Audilors remuneration - audit services 2,368,592 TI9,000 498,150 86,000
Colleclion fees 37,177,491 35,342,519 - -
Consulting and secretarial 1,568,795 8,454,680 854431 1,103,183
Management fees 34,739,273 35,884,220 - -
Employee benefit expense 61,090,247 46,612,759 40,324 60,739
Depreciation (ntote 11} $2,881,773 5,052,259 - -
Met {recovery) / impairment of bad debts on financial assets 9,235,614 18,225,673 - -
Directors' remuneration - for services as directors 1,822,427 3,540,883 - -
Directors' remuneration - for management services 2,810,127 2,650,665 - -
Computer related expenses 2,294,697 3,133,708 - -
Oftice rental 2,338,438 5,976,822 - -
Travel and accommeadation 2,555,EE3 1,864,630 - 12,310
Sociat responsibility projects 1,163,634 1,588,093 120,719 15,000
Arangement fees - 4,930,099 - -
Telephone & Fax 2,918,114 2,672,044 - -
Guarantee fees 4,662,864 2,382,192 - -
Subscriplions 7,865,743 7,249,578 144,452 103,466
VAT expense 9,651,895 15,001,976 - -
Other operational expenses 9,894,540 8,015,539 5,383 11,625

213,078,785 213,425,212 2,011,680 1,728,732
Tisance inceme and costs
Interest income calculated using the effective interest income method - Advances to custotners 599,805,317 596,693,160 - -
Cither interes! income:

- Interest received on shost 1erm bank deposils 25,301,841 21,464,747 85,572 24,149
Tolal interest income caleulated using the eftective interest income methad 625,198,158 618,157,907 85,572 24,149
Interest paid: (36,617,530 (32,866,178) - -

- Borrowings (29,221,294) (25,661,097) - -

- Deposils due to customers (5,794,464) (3,205,081) - -

- Leage liabilities (1,601,772) - - -
Net interest income 588,580,628 585,291,729 85,572 24,149

‘The Group’s other uterest income was previously presented separately in the statement of camprehensive income. However, management considers it 10 he more televant if all interest fncome is presented in one
line item in the statenient of comprehensive income. Prior year comparatives as at 31 December 2018 have been restated by reclassifying NAD21,464,747 from other interest income 1o Intesest income caledaled

using the effective interest income method.

Fee income
Poslage fees
Fees and conwmission eamned from services to customers

Other operaling inceme
Dividend income - eelt captive
{Loss)/Profi on disposal of plant and equipment

Operating fease torsmitmends
The fuitire minimwn leasc payments wnder non-cancellable operating leascs are
as follows:
Low value assets and shorl-term leases (IFRS 16}
WNot fater than 1 year
After | year but within 3 years
Property and equipment {JAS 17)
Mot later than 1 year
Aler ¥ year bul within 5 years

Short-term and low valus fease commitments relate to computer & office equipment.

360,843 922,706 . .
1,741,570 253,291 - -
2,102,415 1.175,997 - _

229,998,977 256,029,440 73,694,645 17,803,295
- (689,273) - -

220,998,97] 255,340,167 73,694,645 37,803,295
2,476,353 - . .
11,207,060 - - N
- 4,943,691 - -
- 12,228 855 - -
13,683,413 17,172,546 - .

Lease commitments with respect 4o buildings are recognised undes dght-of-use assets,
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Group Company
31 Decenther 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2z 2018
N§ N§ N§ N$
27. Related parties
Letshepa Micro Financial Services {(Namibia) {Proprietary) Limited (Subsidiary)
Lelshego Bank (Namibia) Limited (Subsidiazy)
Lease agreements: Erf Eight Five Eight Five (Proprietary) Limited (Subsidiary of Ullimate Parent Company)
M, Services ag ts: Leishega Holdings Limited (ltimate Parent Conipany)
Key management personnel: Ester Kali (Chief Executive Officer)
Gregory Madhimba {Chief Financial Officer)
O'Rute Uandara {Chief Operating Officer}
Jarnes Damon (Head of Credit)
Aletta Shifoloka (Head of Intemal Awdit)
Barend Kruger (Head of Consumer Bivision)
Diana Mokhatu (Head of Human Resources)
Chriszetda Gonles {Chief Risk Offcer)
Directors: Rairirira Mbakutua Mbetjiba
Ester Kali
Rosalia Martins-Hausiku
Sven von Blolnilz
Maryvonne Palanduz
Mythri Sambasivan-George
271 Related party balances
Lanan acconnts - Owing to related parties
Letshego Hotdings Limited - loan 138,049,450 120,451,875 - -
E1f 8585 (Pty) Lid 2,902,058 2,946,716 - -
Tatat refated pardy bakasces 140,951,508 123,398,691 - -

‘The laan from Letshego Holdings Limited is unsecured and interest is calculated monthly in arrears at a variable rate of Namibia prime plus 236. The loan has no fixed repayment terms,

The intercompany loan with Erf 8585 (Pty) Ltd is unsecured and currently does not bear interest and has no fixed repayment terms,

Advances

Advances to key management personnel 1,134,440 1,302,985 - -

No impai has been re d in respect of loans granted to key management personxnel in the current or prior year.

Deposits

Dreposits from key managemenl personncl and directors 254,312 355,062 - -

Deposits inclade current and savings accounts.

27.2  Related party {ransactiess

Indeest paid to related parties

Letshego Holdings Limiled - 18,252,025 - -

Key management personnel and directors 9,169 13,448 - -

Toderest received from related parties

Key managemen personnel 128,049 157,355 - -

Dividend on preference shares paid to related parties

Letshepo Holdings Limited 65,931,918 27,996,763 - -

Rent paid to related parties

Erf Eight Five Eight Five {Proprietary} Limited 1,387,778 1,526,004 - -

Guarantee fees paid {o velated parties

Letshego Holdings Limited 4,669,864 2,382,192 - -

Managemend Fees paid to related partics

Leishego Heldings Limited 34,739,273 35,884,220 - -

The amount classified as management fees under note 22 is made up as foliows:

Fees payzble to Letshego Heldings Limited 31,265,346 32,205,798 - -

Withholding tax paid an imported management services 3,473,927 3,588,422 - -
34,139,273 33,884,220 - -
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272 Relaled pariy transsctions {continsied)

Arrangement fees paid to related parties
Lelshego Holdings Eimited

Compensation paid to key management personnet
Salari¢s and shori-term benefits
Post employment benefits

C Hon paid te d

Sitting fees paid to non-executive directors

Transactions with related pardies take place on terms that are market related and at arms' lengili in nature.

28. Secusity

Group Compnny
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N§ N§ N§ N§
12,723,029 12,754,404 - -
227,01¢ 962,501 - -
13,650,039 13,716,993 - -
1,822,427 1,540,383 - -
1,822,427 1,540,333 - -

NAD 1.53 billion of the customer advances portfolio {note 10) is registered as security for a Medium Term Note programme floated by the ultimate bolding company on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange. The
proramme in issue is for a combination of fixed and floating rate notes which mature respeciively February 2621 (ZAR 432 million) and February 2022 (ZAR 33 millien), bearing a weighted average rate of 11.6%

nomingl anoual inferest cost.

29, Capital reorganisation reserve

The capital reorganisation reserve arose on 5 July 2016 when Letshego Heldings (Namibia) Limited acquired 99,999% of the issued share eapital of Letshego Bank Namibia [td.

This transaciion was a capital re-organisation in the form of a comymeon conirol combination. As a result, for purposes of consolidation, the transaction was trealed as if the combination
had 1aken place at the beginning of the carliest comparative period presented at ihe time, which was 01 January 2615, Details of the purchase consideration, the net assels acquired and

negative goodwilt are as follows:

Carrying value of assets and liabilities aequired:

Cath

Other receivables
Intercompany receivable
Advances to customers
Deferred taxation

Current taxalion

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other paysbles
Intercompany payable
Bomowings

Non-controlling interest - Pref: shares attzibutable to Ultimate Parent Commpany

Capilal reorganisation reserve
MNet assels acquired

Capilal Teorganigation reserve

N§ NS
Group Company
Asat 0 January 2015: As at O January 2015:
48,033,443 45,762,296
63,969,852 112,824,643
20,516,997 53,552,071
1,607,217.895 1,932,258,251
3,343,381 1,251,260
(14,818,738) 6,728,020
5,904,067 10,814,235
(53,893,908) (32,263,100}
- (1,198,181}
(764,063,948) {785,475,687)
(215,084,843) -
(701,024,198) _ (1,344,153.808)
199,000 100,000
Greup Company
31 December 31 December 31 Decemaber 31 December
pAib 5 2018 2019 2018
NS N§ NS NS
701,024,198 701,024,198 1,344,253,808 1,344,153,808
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Graup Comgany
31 Decentber 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2919 2018
NS NS$ NS N$
30, Invesémend in subsidiaries
Investment in Letshego Micro Financial Services (Ply} Limiled at cost - - 570,100,000 570,100,000
Investment in Letshego Bank Mamibiz Lintted at cost - - 1,344,253,808 1,344,253 808
- - 1,914,353,808 1,914,353,808
31, Capital comsnitments
Authorised but not contracted for 17,813,000 11,500,000 - -

The capital commitments will be fonded by the Group's cash resources.

3% Sepment informatisa

The Group considers iis banking and other financial services operations as one eperating segment. There are no other components, ‘Tlis is in a manner consistent with the intemnal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker, identified as the Chief Executive Cfficer ofthe Group. The chief eperating decision-maker is the person that ellocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating

segment(s) of an entity.

In assessing the performance of the hanking and other financial services operation, the Chief Executive Officer reviews the variaus sgaregated revenue streams, the 1otal costs and the assets and liabifities related o

the banking activity, which have been disclosed in the various notes to the consolidated financial statements.

321  Eatity-wide disclosures
32,11 Products and Services

Operating segment
« Banking operations

Brand
« Letshego

Description

« Regulated financial services provider, focusing on the low to middle income earners in the Namibia.

Preducts and services

+ Letshego canducts business as a registered bank and pravidas micro-landing services.

32,1.2 Geopraphical scgments

There are no segment aperations outside Namibia ss the group operates within the borders of Namibia.

32.1.3 Major customers

Segment reporting requires the disclosure of an entity's zeliance on its major customers, if revenue from transastions willt a single customer is ten percent or more of the eatity's revense. The group does
nat have customers that contribute ten percent or more (o its revenue and is therefore not reliant on a single major customer.

33 Net debt reconciliation

The net debl is made up of cash, borrowings and lease lisbilities, Other changes include son-cash movements, including accrued interest expense which will be presented as operating cash flows in the statement of

cash flows when paid. Ai year-end, net debt is constituted as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Bomewings repayable within one year {including lease liabilities)
Borewings repayable after one year (including lease liabilities)
Net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Gross debt - fixed interest rates
Gross debl - variable interest rates
et debt

14,586,155 750,860,322 179,513 1,119,927
(288,352,553 (15,659,798) - -
(157,577,929) (448,789.784) - -
(298,344,327) 286,410,739 179,513 1,119,927

147,586, E55 750,860,322 179,313 1,119,527
(445,930,482) {464,449,582) - -
(298,344,327) 286,410,730 179,583 1119927
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Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N§ Ng NS N$

34, Enrntings and headline earnings per shrre

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit for the year/period by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year/period, excluding ordinary shares purchased by
the company and held as treasury shares.

Headline eamings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit for the yearfperiod, alter excluding idenfifiable ; net ol tax, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue doring
the year/period, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the company and held as treasury shares.

Eurnings

Profit for the period 451,105,539 468,872,611 180,293,835 31,632,759
Headiine adjustments - - M -
Remeasurement incleded in equity accaunied eamings -] - 11 “ | [ -]
Headline carnings 451,105,833 468,872,611 180,193,835 31,632,759
Number of ordinary shares in issus at year end (note 18) 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,008,060 500,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares i issue during the perod 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,090,600 500,000,000
Diluted weighted average nuniber of ordinary shares in issue dusing the period 500,090,000 500,000,000 500,060,000 500,000,000
Earnings per ordinary share {cents}

Basic 9 94 36 &
Fully diluted 90 k2] 35 6
Headliineg earnings per ordinary share {cents)

Basic S0 o4 36 6
Fully dituted S0 EL ) 36 [}

35, Evenfs oceurring after the veporting date

COVID-19
Since the reporting date, there has been glabai owtbreak of the coronavirus {COVID-19), The dircclors have evaluated she financial impact of COVID-19 on the Group and cannot identify a going concern tisk
within the mediun term. The Group has identified the healih of its employees as the most critical risk factor during the pandemic and has impk d sufficient to mitigate these fsks. An estimate of the

financial impact of COVID-19 on the Group cannot be made due 1o uncertainties regarding how long the pandemic will last and its overall effects on the local economy. Notwilhstanding, the Group does not
expect any major adverse elfcts on its advances poctfolio directly resulting from COVID-19 as the majority of its customers are employed by the Govemment and are not expected to lose their employment in the
foreseeable future. Apart from this, the directors are nol aware of any matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial period and up to the date of this report, that would require adjustment of, or
disclosure in these annual financial statements.

Dividdend
A dividend of 22.5 cents per ordinary share has been declared subsequent to the reporting date.
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